
 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 1, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
4:30 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION – if needed 
  
5:30 P.M. – INVOCATION – Rev. Tom Lamkin, Sandhills Baptist Association 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Caroline Xiong, Chief Financial Officer 
 
CHAIRMAN – Does any Commissioner have a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board will 
address in this meeting? 
 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (Procedures are attached) 
 

II. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
III. RECOGNITIONS  
 
IV. PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. Board of Commissioners Welcome Packet (Wayne Vest) 
 
B. Sandhills Center Quarterly Report (Caroline Xiong) 

 
C. Report on Ambulance Availability/Hospital Wait Times (Bryan Phillips) 

 
V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate discussion will be 
held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 
 
A. Minutes: October 18, 2016 Regular Meeting  
B. Budget Amendments 
C. Ratify County Manager Signature for 2016 Urgent Repair Program Funding Agreement 
D. Adoption of Fair Housing Plan and Analysis of Impediments to Further Fair Housing 
E. FY16 Unified Hazard Mitigation Assistance Grant Program Application Notification 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Public Hearing – Economic Development Incentive Grant Agreement (Misty Leland / Pat 
Corso) 
 



 2

B. Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request for Bed and Breakfast: Calico 
Ridge – 286 Heritage Farm Road (Debra Ensminger) 

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Finance – Request for Approval of Limited Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2016 

(Caroline Xiong) 
 

B. Public Works – Request for Approval of Change Order # 1 for Lift Station V-1 
Elimination Project (Randy Gould) 

 
C. Public Works – Request for Approval of Settlement Agreement: Spur Road (Randy 

Gould) 
 

D. Public Works – Request for Approval of Amendment to Disposal Service Agreement 
(Chad Beane) 

 
E. Public Safety – Request for Approval of FY16 Homeland Security Grant Program 

Exercise Grant (Bryan Phillips) 
 

F. Public Safety – Request for Approval of 2016 Emergency Management Performance 
Grant (Bryan Phillips) 

 
G. Legal – Request for Consideration of Declaratory Judgment for DSS (Misty Leland) 

 
IX. APPOINTMENTS 

 
X. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
XII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 
 

 Partners Executive Board, Thursday, November 3, 8:00am (Saunders) 
 RSVP Advisory Council, Thursday, November 3, 3:00pm (Daeke) 
 Responders Appreciation Event, Saturday, November 5, 1:00-4:00pm  
 Partners Full Board, Tuesday, November 8, 8:00am (Graham/Saunders) 
 Airport Authority, Tuesday, November 8, 10:00am (Graham) 
 Sandhills Center Board, Tuesday, November 8, 7:00pm (Ritter) 
 Pre-agenda, Wednesday, November 9, 9:00am (Picerno/Graham) 
 Drug Free Moore County, Thursday, November 10, 8:30am (Ritter) 
 Local Emergency Planning Comm., Thursday, November 10, 11:00am (Ritter) 
 Fire Commission, Thursday, November 10, 6:00pm (Ritter) 
 Veterans Day Holiday, County Offices Closed, Friday, November 11 
 Reception for Comms. Picerno and Saunders, Tuesday, November 15, 2:00-4:00pm 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, November 15, closed session 4:30pm, open session 5:30pm 
 DSS Board, Wednesday, November 16, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 CVB Board, Thursday, November 17, 4:00pm (Saunders) 
 Thanksgiving Holiday, County Offices Closed, Thursday and Friday, Nov. 24 and 25 
 Aging Advisory Council, Tuesday, November 29, 8:30am (Daeke) 
 Pre-agenda, Wednesday, November 30, 9:00am 
 Organizational/Regular Mtg. & Oaths of Office/Reception, Monday, December 5, 5:30pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments and suggestions for 
the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set aside for the purpose of receiving such 
comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the 
following procedures: 
 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be limited to a maximum of 
thirty minutes. 

 
2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet available on the table 

outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be 
available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by 
telephone request to County Staff. 

 
3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to speak will only be 

entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be yielded to him/her by another individual who 
has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 
4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up sheet.  Speakers 

will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating their name and address. 
 

5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  However, Board members may, in their 
discretion and after being recognized by the Board Chairperson, respond to speakers’ comments.  Any response by a commissioner to 
a speaker during the public comment period does not open discussion between the commissioner and speaker.  Speakers will address 
all comments to the Board as a whole and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience will not be allowed. 

 
6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, discriminatory or 

embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  Speaker must be respectful and courteous in 
their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 
7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed up get to speak, 

those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 
 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 
 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and 
documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 
10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including 

the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session matters, including but not limited to matters 
within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made 
confidential by law; matters which are the subject of public hearings. 

 
11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in the rear of the 

Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 
 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 
  
Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 

 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IV. A.11/1/2016

























































































































































































































































































































































































































































clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IV.B.







 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 18, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners met for a Regular Meeting at 5:30 p.m., Tuesday, October 18, 
2016 in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room on the second floor of the Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North 
Carolina. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Vice Chairman Randy Saunders, Jerry Daeke, Catherine 
Graham, Otis Ritter 
      
Commissioners Absent:  None 
       
****************************************************************************************** 
 
Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  Reverend William Saunders of Pleasant Hill United 
Methodist Church provided the invocation and Public Works Director Randy Gould led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
The Chairman asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board 
would discuss during the meeting and no conflicts were stated. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
There were no speakers. 
 

ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to add to 
the agenda consideration of a resolution authorizing the upset bid process for County-owned property located 
on Central Drive/NC Highway 22 in Southern Pines. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
approve the following consent agenda items: 
 
Minutes: October 4, 2016 Regular Meeting  
Budget Amendments 
Tax Releases/Refunds – September 2016 
Tax Insolvents List 
Digital Learning Invoices for Moore County Schools 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.A.11/1/2016



 2

Globe Communications Contract Amendment # 4 
Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for Well Site 3 
Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for Well Site 9 
Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for Well Site 11A 
Limited Obligation Bonds, Series 2016 – 2010 LOBs & USDA Bonds Refunding 
 
The budget amendments, tax releases/refunds resolutions, tax insolvents list, upset bid resolution for Well Site 
3, upset bid resolution for Well Site 9, and upset bid resolution for Well Site 11A are hereby incorporated as a 
part of these minutes by attachment as Appendices A, B, C, D, E, and F, respectively.   

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
Public Hearing/Monarch – FY18 Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities Funding 
Application 
 
Ms. Rahnelle Rosado with Monarch requested the Board hold a public hearing regarding Monarch’s 
consolidated capital projects application for North Carolina Department of Transportation funding for Enhanced 
Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities for FY2018.  Chairman Picerno opened the public hearing.  
There were no speakers.  Chairman Picerno closed the public hearing.   

 
Public Hearing/Planning – FY18 5311 Community Transportation Program Funding Application 
 
Ms. Lydia Cleveland, Administrative/Transportation Program Manager, requested the Board hold a duly 
advertised public hearing regarding the proposed FY18 5311 Community Transportation Program application.  
Chairman Picerno opened the public hearing.  There were no speakers.  Chairman Picerno closed the public 
hearing.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-
0 to approve the submittal of the FY18 5311 Community Transportation Program application. 
   
Public Hearing/Planning – Text Amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance 
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger reviewed proposed text amendments to the Unified Development 
Ordinance and asked the Board to hold a duly advertised public hearing regarding the same.  Chairman Picerno 
opened the public hearing.  There were no speakers.  Chairman Picerno closed the public hearing.  Upon motion 
made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to adopt the Moore 
County Board of Commissioners Land Use Plan Consistency Statement and authorize its Chairman to execute 
the same as required by North Carolina General Statute 153A-341.  Upon motion made by Commissioner 
Ritter, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the rewrite of the Moore County 
Unified Development Ordinance as proposed.  The Land Use Plan Consistency Statement and summary of 
changes to the Unified Development Ordinance are hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by 
attachment as Appendix G. 
 
On behalf of the Board of Commissioners, Chairman Picerno recognized Senior Planner Theresa Thompson for 
her dedication to the rewrite of the UDO.  He presented to her an engraved pen in appreciation.  Ms. Ensminger 
also thanked the other Planning Department staff for maintaining the workload while Ms. Thompson focused on 
the UDO. 

 
Call to Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request for Bed and Breakfast: Calico Ridge – 
286 Heritage Farm Road 
 
Planning Director Debra Ensminger asked the Board to call a public hearing regarding a Conditional Use Permit 
request for a Bed and Breakfast.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Vice Chairman 



 3

Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to call a public hearing on November 1, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. for a one-unit Bed and 
Breakfast in a single family residence located at 286 Heritage Farm Road. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Public Works – Request for Approval of Settlement Agreement with Utility Service 
 
Public Works Director Randy Gould requested the Board’s approval of a settlement agreement and release with 
Utility Service concerning renovation and maintenance service contracts for Clearwell Tanks #1 and #2.  Upon 
motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to approve 
the settlement agreement and release with Utility Service. 

 
Finance – Request for Approval of Classification of General Fund’s Assigned Fund Balances 
 
Chief Financial Officer Caroline Xiong requested the Board classify the General Fund’s fund balance as 
“assigned fund balance” as of June 30, 2016, and she reviewed information regarding this request.  Property 
Management Director Bobby Lake review information on projects to which these funds would be assigned. Ms. 
Xiong recommended the assigned amounts and Chairman Picerno inquired as to whether $400,000 assigned for 
the County General Capital Expense could be revised to $300,000 and $100,000 to Parks and Recreation.  Ms. 
Xiong indicated this would not be a problem.  Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Vice 
Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to classify the General Fund’s fund balance as “assigned fund 
balance” as of June 30, 2016 for the following amounts as stated below: 
 

1) $315,000 Assigned Fund Balance in the General Fund as of June 30, 2016 for Vehicle Replacement Plan 
2) $200,000 Assigned Fund Balance in the General Fund as of June 30, 2016 for Elections Capital Projects 

Building 
3) $300,000 Assigned Fund Balance in the General Fund as of June 30, 2016 for the County General 

Capital Expense 
4) $100,000 Assigned Fund Balance in the General Fund as of June 30, 2016 for Parks and Recreation 

Capital Projects 
5) $431,700 Assigned Fund Balance in the General Fund as of June 30, 2016 for the unspent Digital 

Learning Funds from FY15/16 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
approve the budget amendment as presented to appropriate the funds for the $315,000 Vehicle Replacement 
Plan and $200,000 for the Elections Capital Projects Building.  The budget amendment is hereby incorporated 
as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix H. 

 
Administration – Request for Approval of Budget Development Policy 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest requested the Board’s approval of a Moore County Budget Development Policy, 
which he presented to the commissioners at a work session on September 8, 2016.  Chairman Picerno 
commented regarding the County’s ability in the last several years to cut the tax rate, build a new public safety 
center, pay off some school bond debt early, etc., despite a major recession experienced.  He recommended the 
subject policy be shared with the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners as it could be helpful to 
other counties.  Chairman Picerno made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to approve the Moore 
County Budget Development Policy and the supporting documentation.  Vice Chairman Saunders said this 
document should be the first thing read by new members of the Board of Commissioners.  He said it was a great 
document.  The motion to approve the policy carried 5-0.  The policy is hereby incorporated as a part of these 
minutes by attachment as Appendix I.  Chairman Picerno thanked Mr. Vest and the County’s department 



 4

directors.  Mr. Vest recognized especially Assistant County Manager Janet Parris and Internal Auditor Tami 
Golden, who together put in tremendous effort in creating the policy. 

 
Legal – Request to Consider Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for Well Site 13 
 
County Attorney Misty Leland presented for the Board’s consideration a resolution acknowledging the 
negotiated offer of $500.00 for certain real property known as Well Site 13, having ParID # 10001145 and 
authorizing the upset bid process.  The Board discussed the location of the property and its value.  Upon motion 
made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to adopt the 
resolution acknowledging receipt of the offer of $500.00 and authorizing the upset bid process, and authorize 
the Chairman to sign all necessary documents.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes 
by attachment as Appendix J. 
 
Legal – Request to Consider Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for County-Owned Property 
Located on Central Drive/NC Hwy 22 in Southern Pines 
 
County Attorney Misty Leland presented for the Board’s consideration a resolution acknowledging the 
negotiated offer of $269,000 for certain real property owned by the County located off Central Drive/NC 
Highway 22 in Southern Pines and having ParID # 99000385 and authorizing the upset bid process.  Upon 
motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Chairman Picerno, the Board voted 5-0 to adopt the 
resolution acknowledging receipt of the offer of $269,000 and authorizing the upset bid process, and authorize 
the Chairman to sign all necessary documents.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes 
by attachment Appendix K. 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
appoint Annette McGraw to the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council for a two-year term commencing November 
1, 2016 and expiring October 31, 2018. 
 
Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
appoint Donna Harrell to the Nursing and Adult Care Home Community Advisory Committee for a three-year 
term commencing November 1, 2016 and expiring October 31, 2019. 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
County Manager Wayne Vest commended those departments, agencies, and citizen groups that responded to 
needs during Hurricane Matthew.  Chairman Picerno asked where the County was in the process for a disaster 
declaration and Mr. Vest said FEMA and State Emergency Management representatives were present this day 
to review the damage assessment in order to facilitate that process and get a decision. 
 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Vice Chairman Saunders said he would be going out of the country and would have to miss the next regular 
Board meeting.  He said he would be gone for two weeks but would be available via email or text. 
 



 5

Commissioner Ritter commended the Hurricane Matthew responders.  He said staff and those in the Emergency 
Operations Center did a great job and he also praised those citizens who came out to assist.  He congratulated 
them all and expressed gratitude that no one in Moore County was hurt. 
 
Commissioner Graham said the Board would miss Vice Chairman Saunders at the next meeting.  She also stated 
her agreement with Commissioner Ritter’s comments regarding the storm response.  She noted a line in a recent 
publication by the National Association of Counties that said local government should be at its best when the 
people need it most.  She said those at home during the storm response were diligent in prayer and that the 
County was blessed to have not lost any lives. 
 
Chairman Picerno said he could not possibly name everyone involved in the storm response, but he especially 
thanked County Manager Wayne Vest and Public Safety Director Bryan Phillips.  He said he was so proud of 
how they handled the situation.  He also commended the EOC staff and National Guard and said they were the 
best of America.  Chairman Picerno recommended an appreciation day be held to honor everyone that 
responded.  He said it should be privately funded and he would be glad to write a check.  He directed the 
County Manager to begin coordinating this event. 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 
Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the October 18, 2016 regular meeting of the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners at 6:13 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
        __________________________________________ 
        Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk  
 
 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.B.







  

2016 Urgent Repair Funding Agreement 1 

  Agenda Item: ___________ 
  Meeting Date: November 1, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  October 24, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Ratify County Manager Signature of 2016 Urgent Repair 

Program Funding Agreement 
 
PRESENTER: Debra Ensminger 
 
REQUEST: 
Request to ratify County Manager’s Signature on the 2016 Urgent Repair Program 
Funding Agreement for $100,000 through North Carolina Housing Finance Agency. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On July 19, 2016 Moore County Board of Commissioners made a motion to accept the 
$100,000 Urgent Repair Program awarded to Moore County. 
 
The County’s 2016 Urgent Repair Program is designed to eliminate threats to the health 
and human safety of at least 13 qualifying resident homeowners. 
 
The County administered this same program in 2010, 2012, 2013, and is currently within 
the 2015 version.  To date 54 qualified low income homes with 120 residents were served 
and of the applicants served in these four program years, 88% were disabled and 83% 
were over the age of 62.  Work performed under the 2010, 2012, 2013 and 2015 versions 
of this program included new and patched roofs, handicap ramps, creating handicapped 
accessible bathrooms, floor repair, new heating and cooling units and repairs to plumbing 
and electrical systems. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Ratify County Manager’ Signature  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
$5,000 local matching funds 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to ratify County Manager’s Signature on the 2016 Urgent Repair program 
Funding Agreement through North Carolina Housing Finance Agency. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
2016 Urgent Repair Funding Agreement 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.C.





















  

Update to Analysis of Impediments, and Fair Housing Plan 1 

  Agenda Item: ___________ 
  Meeting Date: November 1, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  October 5, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of the Moore County’s Analysis of Impediments  
 
PRESENTER: Debra Ensminger 
 
REQUEST: 
Request for adoption of the Analysis of Impediments to Further Fair Housing, as well as 
Fair Housing Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
North Carolina Housing Finance Agency (NCHFA) provides funding for the Single 
Family Rehab program with HOME funds (federal dollars).  Housing Finance Agency 
has recommended Moore County update the Analysis of Impediments every five (5) 
years.   
 
On May 17th, 2011 the Moore County Board of Commissioners approved an update to the 
Fair Housing Plan to remain in compliant with federal regulations.  The Analysis of 
Impediments and Fair Housing Plan will be valid through May 2022. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approval of Fair Housing plan, execution of plan activities.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
No local match.  Some minimal financial resources will be necessary in order to 
implement this plan. Grant funds will be utilized to pay for any expenses incurred. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to adopt the Fair Housing Plan and the Analysis of Impediments to 
Further Fair Housing and authorize the chairman to execute all documents related to the 
Plan and Analysis. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Fair Housing Plan, Analysis of Impediments. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.D.



 1 

Analysis of Impediments to Further Fair Housing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by Moore County Planning & Community Development with assistance from Hobbs 
Upchurch Associates 



I.  INTRODUCTION AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF THE ANALYSIS 

A.  WHO CONDUCTED 

An Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing was updated by Moore County Planning 
& Community Development between July 2016 and September 2016.   This analysis 
was originally prepared in 2001 by Moore County Planning & Community 
Development and was updated in 2011 with assistance from Hobbs Upchurch 
Associates.  It included planning and data collection components of the analysis, as 
well as the review of policies and practices that impact on housing choices and 
opportunities.  This recent update has been compiled to insure that the County has 
met the requirements of Fair Housing to insure compliance associated with North 
Carolina Housing Finance Agency HOME program. 
 

B. PARTICIPANTS 

 The Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing as completed in September 2016 
includes Moore County as the only participant.   Municipalities, exceeding a 
population of 10,000, will complete a separate Analysis of Impediments to Fair 
Housing. 

  
C. METHODOLOGY USED 

 The data in this Analysis are based on the 2010-2014 American Community Survey 
5-Year Estimates. To maintain confidentiality, the Census Bureau applies statistical 
procedures that introduce some uncertainty into data for geographic areas with small 
population groups.  ACS estimates are period estimates that describe the average 
characteristics of the population and housing over a period of data collection.  For 
example, the 2014 ACS 1-year estimates are averages over the period from January 1, 
2014 to December 31, 2014 because this is the period of time for which sample data 
were collected. Similarly, multiyear estimates are averages of the characteristics over 
several years. For example, the 2010-2014 ACS 5-year estimates are averages over 
the period from January 1, 2010 to December 31, 2014. Multiyear estimates cannot be 
used to say what was going on in any particular year in the period, only what the 
average value is over the full time period. 

 
D.  HOW FUNDED 

 This analysis was completed by Moore County Planning & Community 
Development.  No cost, other than the cost of staff time, has been incurred to prepare 
this update. 

 
E.  CONCLUSIONS 

 The conclusions of the analysis generally bear out, or prove, obstacles previously 
identified in fair housing plans submitted by the County for previous project funded 
with CDBG or HOME funds.  

 

 



 3 

1.  Impediments Found 
a.  The absence of coordination by financial institutions, contractors, realtors, and 

other related organizations and groups in both the private and public sectors in 
the provision of affordable housing. 

b.  The lack of an adequate number of standard and affordable housing that will 
provide low to moderate income (LMI) citizens with housing choices in 
locations outside traditional low to moderate income and minority 
concentrations. 

c.  The limited amount of fair housing complaints within the County, and within 
the towns that lie within the County. 

2. Actions to address Impediments 
a. Hold a fair housing public workshop for financial institutions, contractors, 

realtors, and other related organizations and groups in both the private and 
public sectors to promote fair housing in Moore County as defined in the 
County’s fair housing plan.  

b. Promote fair housing rights, responsibilities of housing owners and complaint 
procedures through advertisements and broadcast, both in English and 
Spanish; in the local newspapers and radio stations. 

 
 
II.  JURISDICTIONAL DEMOGRAPHIC AND BACKGROUND DATA 

A.  DEMOGRAPHICS 

Moore County is located in southern central North Carolina, in the southern piedmont 
region near the border of the piedmont and the coastal plain. It lies approximately 60 
miles south of Raleigh, and approximately 50 miles north of the South Carolina - 
North Carolina border and is bordered by Cumberland, Harnett, Hoke, Scotland, 
Richmond, Montgomery, Randolph, Chatham, and Lee counties. The present area is 
706 square miles or 451,865 acres. 

POPULATION OF MOORE COUNTY: The 2010-2014 American Community 
Survey has estimated the population at 90,579. The County covers 706 square miles; 
this yields a population density of approximately 126.5 persons per square mile. Of 
that total approximately 47,169 (52.1%) were females and approximately 43,410 
(47.9%) were males. The median age was 45.1 years. Approximately 21.4% of the 
population was under 18 years and 23.3% was 65 years and older. Approximately 
52% of the population resides within the corporate limits of the towns within the 
County.  This concentration of towns lies mostly in the southern end of the County, 
leaving the remaining portions to a mostly rural setting.  

RACIAL PROFILE OF MOORE COUNTY: For people reporting one race alone, 
82.8% was White; 12.3% was Black or African American; 0.7% was American 
Indian and Alaska Native; 0.1% was Asian; less than 0.1% was Native Hawaiian and 
Other Pacific Islander and 0.7% was some other race. Approximately 2.5% reported 
two or more races. Of the people in Moore County 6.1% were Hispanic, 77.4% of the 



 4 

people in Moore County were White non-Hispanic. Probably one of the most 
significant notations in the racial profile was that the Hispanic population nearly 
doubled from the 2000 data collected.  This may indicate a need for greater use of the 
Spanish language in promoting fair housing. A large portion of Moore County’s 
Hispanic population is concentrated in the northwestern portion of the County in, and 
around, the town of Robbins. 

 
B. INCOME DATA 

The median income of households in Moore County was $50,393. With 66.6% of the 
households received earnings and 26.8% received retirement income other than 
Social Security. Households’ receiving Social Security was 41.7%. The average 
income from Social Security was $19,892. These income sources are not mutually 
exclusive; that is, some households received income from more than one source.  

POVERTY AND PARTICIPATION IN GOVERNMENT PROGRAMS: In 2010-2014, 
16.3% of people were in poverty. This was a slight increase from the previous data 
but still indicates a greater need for affordable housing within the County.  With 
26.7% of related children under 18 were below the poverty level, compared with 
7.1% of people 65 years old and over, 12.2% of all families and 43.3% percent of 
families with a female householder and no husband present had incomes below the 
poverty level.  

 
C. EMPLOYMENT DATA 

 Moore County's 2010-2014 data showed the civilian labor force at 35,356; the 2010-
2014 population was 73,423 for data 16 years and over. These figures indicate that 
53.1% of the population over 16 years of age makes up the County's workforce.  
Portions of Moore County are popular retirement locations due to the mild winter 
climate, year round golfing, and other amenities.  This contributes to an unusually 
large number of retired citizens when compared to other counties in the state.  The 
large employers in the County are generally educational services, health care, and 
social assistance related companies; followed by sales, office and service occupations. 
Health care and social assistance is the single largest employer category in the County 
hiring 19.3% of men and 80.7% of women. 

OCCUPATIONS AND TYPE OF EMPLOYER: Among the most common 
occupations were: Retail trade, 11.4%; Construction, 6%; Health care and social 
assistance, 19.1%; Other services (except public administration), 7.9%; Professional, 
scientific and technical services occupations, 4.6% percent; Accommodation and food 
services, 6.7%; Administrative and support and waste management services, 3.2%; 
The combined total of other areas of employers, 25.3%; 53.1% of the people 
employed were classified in the civilian labor force; 15.1% was Federal, state, or 
local government workers; and 8.8% was Self-employed not incorporated business 
workers.  
 

D.  HOUSING PROFILE 



 5 

HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS: In 2010-2014, Moore County had a total of 44,547 
housing units, of those units 36,947 were occupied (82.9%) and 7,600 of which were 
vacant (17.1%).  Of the total housing units, 75.1% were single-unit structures, 7.7% 
were multi-unit structures, and 13.4% were mobile homes; 46.7% of the housing units 
were built since 1990.  

HOUSEHOLDS AND FAMILIES: In 2010-2014 there were 36,947 households in 
Moore County. The average household size of owner occupied units was 2.42 people.  
Families made up 66.7% of the households in Moore County. This figure includes 
both married-couple families (53.7%) and other families (13%). Nonfamily 
households made up 33.3% of all households in Moore County. Most of the 
nonfamily households were people living alone, but some were composed of people 
living in households in which no one was related to the householder. 

OCCUPIED HOUSING UNIT CHARACTERISTICS: In 2010-2014, Moore County 
had 36,947 occupied housing units – 27,594 (74.7%) owner occupied and 
9,353(25.3%) renter occupied.  Approximately 1.3% of the households did not have 
telephone service and 5.5% of the households did not have access to a car, truck, or 
van for private use. Multi Vehicle households were not rare; 41.2% had two vehicles 
and another 23.7% had three or more. Of the total number of occupied units 1.7% had 
no bedroom, 156 (0.4%) lacked complete kitchen facilities, 103 (0.3%) lacked 
complete plumbing facilities, and 110 (0.3%) had no source of heat.  The majority of 
the County substandard units are occupied by LMI persons, with minority and other 
protected class households occupying a disproportionate share of those units. 

HOUSING COSTS: The median monthly housing costs for mortgaged owners was 
$1,287, non-mortgaged owners $378, and renters $740. Of those owners 59.7% were 
with mortgages, 40.3% of owners without mortgages, and 39.4% of renters in Moore 
County spent 35% or more of household income on housing.  

 
III.  EVALUATION OF MOORE COUNTY'S CURRENT FAIR HOUSING PROFILE 

A.  FAIR HOUSING COMPLAINTS AND DISCRIMINATION SUITS 

Since Moore County has been active in the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency 
HOME program the North Carolina Human Relations Commission has been 
contacted for the number and types of fair housing complaints that they have received 
from Moore County.  The Human Relations Commission reported that two cases 
originated within the County unrelated to the HOME program, both have been 
withdrawn with resolution.  Moore County itself, as well as the municipalities of 
Aberdeen, Cameron, Carthage, Robbins, Southern Pines, and Vass has all received 
either Community Revitalization Grants, Economic Development Grants through the 
Small Cities Community Development Block Grant or North Carolina Housing 
Finance Agency HOME program fund in the last ten years. Each have adopted a plan 
to further fair housing, and published "Fair Housing Complaint Procedures" in the 
local newspaper. 

The lack of reported fair housing complaints doesn't necessarily indicate that illegal 
housing activities do not exist in the County; it merely indicates that they aren't being 



 6 

forma1ly reported.  Concentrations of minority and LMI populations still exist in 
Moore County.  A positive response to these conditions must be presented that will 
not encourage or perpetuate these segregated housing trends. 

 
B. REASONS FOR ANY TRENDS OR PATTERNS 

There is a complex set of reasons that may explain concentrations of LMI or minority 
populations in Moore County.  As with all other jurisdictions in the United States, 
Moore County has not been without a history of racial discrimination that dictated 
patterns of property ownership as well as the provision of utilities and other services.  
These conditions may have been exacerbated by a lack of representation in groups 
that could affect a more positive outcome for these communities. 

The resources available to low-income communities seeking affordable housing in 
Moore County are much better than many other rural areas but are still limited in 
comparison with urban counterparts.  A well-developed housing environment 
typically includes a public housing authority, community action agency, Habitat for 
Humanity, county and municipal housing rehabilitation programs, community 
development corporations, and a housing advocacy group that seeks to address 
instances in which the free market has failed to provide suitable options in the 
affordable housing arena.  Moore County lacks a community development 
corporation, municipal housing programs, and housing advocacy groups.  The county 
does have a plethora of small providers of housing assistance to the most needy, 
typically through faith-based groups, but a coordinated approach inclusive of greater 
outreach and education is sorely needed. 

One new trend is the growth of the Hispanic community in, and around, the Town of 
Robbins in north eastern Moore County.  The emergence of a Spanish-speaking 
population is due to the recruitment of workers living in Mexico and Central America 
by textile mills located in the Robbins area during the mid- to late-1990s.  This 
particular minority population has a unique set of challenges that potentially could 
include language barriers, lack of knowledge of housing programs and government 
services, lack of trust or willingness to work with government agencies out of fear of 
deportation, lack of general knowledge about housing and assets, and disadvantages 
that accrue from living in impoverished rental conditions. 
 

C. DISCUSSION OF OTHER FAIR HOUSING CONCERNS OR PROBLEMS 

One significant impediment to fair housing in some Moore County communities is 
the existence of “heirs’ property”.  Heirs’ property exists when a property owner 
perishes without a will; by law the ownership of the property is devolved equally to 
the remaining heirs.  Developers are wary to invest in heirs’ properties because of the 
possibility of future claims being made to the property by heirs.  Also, low-income 
housing rehabilitation programs find it difficult to invest grant funds in these 
properties because of the need for contacting all heirs and obtaining their signatures 
on contracts, loan agreements and deeds of trust. 
 

IV.  IDENTIFICATION OF IMPEDIMENTS TO FAIR HOUSING CHOICE 



 7 

A. Public Sector 
 
1.  Zoning and Site selection 

 
As with any other jurisdiction, concentrations of low- and moderate-income housing exist 
in one or more localities or neighborhoods within Moore County.  MAP APPENDIX A 
depicts the percentage of those living below the poverty level by Census tract as reported 
in Census 2000 data.  MAP APPENDIX B depicts the percentage of those living below 
the poverty level by Census tract as reported in the 2010 American Community Survey; 
this map also depicts the locations of HUD-provided and other subsidized rental and 
supportive service housing.  These locations were identified, in large part, with previous 
data through the North Carolina Housing Coalition’s website. 
 
Inclusionary zoning is not a policy codified in the Moore County Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) but the county does provide options and flexibility for the design of 
developments for many levels of income.  Planned Unit Developments offer an additional 
level of flexibility by allowing mixed uses (multi-family residential, single family 
residential and commercial) within the project.  In short, Moore County currently does 
not have any building code or fiscal policies that exclude the provision of lower-income 
housing. While there is no financial barrier the Moore County UDO does contain a 
distinction between single and multi-family housing. In a majority of the zoning districts 
in which multi-family housing is permitted an additional review and approval process 
must be completed by the Moore County Board of Commissioners (BOC) in order to 
issue a permit for any multi-family development. 
 
Cluster development is currently allowed in all residential zoning districts in the Moore 
County planning jurisdiction through a Neighborhood Conservation subdivision.  The 
Neighborhood Conservation Subdivision permits the reduction of lot sizes and 
dimensional requirements in exchange for the dedication of open space through out the 
development.  The dedicated open space can be owned by the homeowners/property 
association or placed in a conservation easement. 
 
The density by which a parcel may be developed for individual residences is dependent 
upon the classification of the underlying zoning district. In subdivisions or Planned Unit 
Developments there are additional incentives that are offered such as increased buffering 
that will allow a developer to increase the density of a proposed development.  Moore 
County’s subdivision regulations currently allow the developer flexibility with the 
required yard setbacks and lot sizes through out the development. The maximum density 
of the development is still based on the minimum requirements of the underlying zoning 
district however the dimensional requirements and lot sizes of the individual building lots 
can be reduced to accommodate the required open space requirements of the ordinance. 
 
Moore County’s zoning ordinance was originally established in 1999 but, even at that 
time, the goal of affordable housing to all residents was recognized as a challenge that 
must be met by more than just mobile homes. Goal 5 of the 2013 Moore County Land 
Use Plan is to accommodate for a variety of housing types.  Action 5.1.1 calls for 



 8 

development of a Countywide Comprehensive Affordable Housing Plan that addresses 
existing and future options, needs, and opportunities.  
 
Moore County’s zoning overall exhibits a neutral effect on the existence and 
concentration of affordable housing within the unincorporated zoning jurisdiction of 
Moore County. The existing language pertaining to the siting of site built and 
manufactured homes does not differentiate between the cost of the structure or who may 
be living within it.  This is borne out in Article 18 Definitions and Word Interpretations 
of the Moore County UDO which broadly defines the term “family” as “One or more 
individuals residing in a dwelling, living as a single housekeeping unit, and complying 
with the following rules: (a) Any number of individuals related by blood, marriage, or 
adoption may occupy a dwelling unit. (b) Where some or all of the occupants are 
unrelated by blood, marriage, or adoption, the total number of occupants that are 
unrelated, shall not exceed three. In applying this provision, children who are under the 
age of 23 and who are children of the owner or a person renting an entire dwelling unit 
from the owner shall be counted as a single occupant. (c) Where a reasonable 
accommodation has been approved.  (d) The presence of household employees or 
children in foster care shall not disqualify any premises otherwise satisfying the above 
rules. 
 
North Carolina General Statutes protect Family Care Homes from certain local 
government restrictions pertaining to zoning. General Statute 168-22 states that a family 
care home shall be deemed a residential use of property for zoning purposes and shall be 
a permissible use in all residential districts of all political subdivisions.  This means that a 
family care home that provides room and board, personal care and habilitation services in 
a family environment for not more than six (6) persons with disabilities is considered a 
single family residential structure for the purposes of the UDO. 
 
The Moore County UDO provides supportive service housing to indigent and / or 
disabled individuals by incorporating Group Care Facilities as a type of permitted activity 
within the Highway Business Zoning District. 

 
2. Neighborhood revitalization, municipal and other services, employment-housing-

transportation linkage. 
 
Maps (Appendices C, D, E, F, G, H, I) depict municipal and other services 
(transportation, social services, schools, health services, hospitals, banks, and other 
lending institutions) located in Moore County.  Most services are equally distributed 
around the county, however most are located near centers of “critical mass” or centers of 
population. Certain services, such as dialysis treatment facilities, are not equally 
distributed around the county; however they are centrally located along major 
thoroughfares near the geographic center of the county. 

 
Select communities outside Moore County are employing smart growth techniques that 
eventually offer county residents options to live closer to goods and services. These 
principles are being employed through their long-range planning efforts, affordable 



 9 

housing (inclusionary zoning) requirements for new subdivisions, and coordinated 
community development efforts where government and private industry work 
collaboratively to find the need and create a supply of adequate housing.  In recent years, 
Moore County has made efforts to increase the number of smart growth tools available to 
its elected officials, government staff and residents. 
 
In summer 2010, Moore County initiated an effort to assemble a diverse group of private 
business owners, institutional, government transportation, land planners, and economic 
development individuals to discuss the opportunity to pursue a grant for land banking. 
The land banking initiative was geared toward creating more affordable housing options 
for individuals near established goods and services and major transportation routes. 
Moore County has also considered the pursuit of Department of Transportation TIGER II 
grants, but efforts fell short due to a lack of qualifications to meet eligibility requirements 
for broad range of regional support. An application to the U.S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development for a Sustainable Communities Planning Grant was considered 
and the county was prepared to complete the application however, support from a major 
regional planning partner fell through just prior to the submittal deadline. 
 
The county has a county-wide on-call and fixed route van service that provides 
transportation services to eligible citizens. The on-call or demand response services 
provide curb to curb transportation for contracted agencies as well as through a token 
program that is partially grant funded and open for transportation to medical, 
employment, and educational related appointments. Regional transportation services for 
both agencies and token clients are provided on certain days of the week and these 
destinations include Fayetteville, Raeford, Sanford, Troy, Biscoe, Chapel Hill, Durham, 
and Raleigh. Currently the county has one route on the fixed route system also known as 
the A Pines Line. The A Pines Line connects residential areas within Southern Pines and 
Aberdeen to Sandhills Community College and commercial businesses. It is intended for 
Moore County Transportation Services to expand and serve other areas of need including 
more rural areas of the county through the A Pines Line or similar service pending 
appropriate funding is available. 
 
Moore County does not typically request information from banks and other financial 
institutions showing investments in lower-income neighborhoods.  In early 2011 Moore 
County did create a survey for banks that was implemented by housing consultants 
Hobbs Upchurch.  Of all the banks surveyed, only First Bank responded (see Appendix 
J).  Non-responsive banks included: Bank of America, Branch Bank & Trust Co., State 
Employees Credit Union, Crescent State Bank, Community One, First Citizens Bank & 
Trust Co., RBC Centura Bank, Sun Trust Bank, Fidelity Bank and Wachovia/Wells 
Fargo.  Not all of these banks are subject to CRA requirements. 
 
Some local branches of banks such as Wachovia/Wells Fargo and First Citizens were 
active participants in a previous local Individual Development Account (IDA) program 
that served populations at less than 80% of Area Median Income.  There is no strategy for 
revitalization of lower-income communities that has been formulated by Moore County, 
but the county is rapidly developing the tools necessary to undertake neighborhood 



 10 

revitalization efforts.  Among those tools was an IDA program that is no longer active 
and current low-income housing rehab programs.  The county’s community development 
division has aggressively sought out, and been awarded, grant funding to support these 
programs.  

  
3/4. PHA and Other Assisted/Insured Housing Provider Tenant Selection Procedures; 
Housing Choices for Certificate and Voucher Holders; Sale of subsidized housing and 
possible displacement  
 
In 2011 the Laurinburg/Southern Pines Housing Authority submitted answers to a 
questionnaire; these are included as Appendix K.  Sandhills Community Action Program 
was requested to complete a portion of the questionnaire related to Section 8 vouchers.  
No response from that agency was given to the request for a completed questionnaire. 
 
5. Property tax policies 
 
All exemption and exclusion programs are governed by North Carolina State Statutes.  
There are provisions for homestead exemptions for elderly and disabled persons 
(including veterans).  Other exemptions are provided for specific owners and uses of 
property.  The applicable Statutes benefit seniors (65+) with income below a specified 
amount, completely disabled persons with income below a specified amount, and 
disabled veterans or spouses of deceased disabled veterans.  All are aimed at the primary 
residence of the qualified owner.  In addition, there are Statutes that address the valuation 
of property owned by certain low income housing groups (ex, Habitat for Humanity and 
Section 42 housing), and qualified retirement centers. 
 
6. Planning and Zoning Boards 
 
The Moore County Planning Board is a nine (9) member advisory board to the Board of 
County Commissioners that is tasked with reviewing and providing recommendations on 
various planning related activities within the unincorporated zoning jurisdiction of Moore 
County.  All nine (9) total members are Caucasian males, approximately six (6) members 
above 45 years of age.  Membership of all advisory boards within Moore County is on a 
volunteer basis.  Applications are available online as well as at the Clerk to the Board’s 
office. The application requests basic information from the applicant however additional 
information may be attached on a resume.  Applications are reviewed by the Board of 
Commissioners who then selects the individual application that they determine best meets 
the needs of the advisory board in question. 

 
7. Building codes (Accessibility) 
 
Moore County uses Ch. 11 of the North Carolina Building Code 2012 Edition in 
conjunction with ANSI A117.1 2003 Edition. 
 
B. Public and Private Sector 
 



 11 

1. Fair Housing Enforcement 
 
Moore County’s Plan to Further Fair Housing sets forth the structure and process for Fair 
Housing outreach and handling of complaints.  At the time of the creation of this 
document, Moore County’s Community Development staff is not aware of any court 
determination that housing discrimination has occurred in any aspect of the jurisdiction’s 
community development or housing programs, or the programs administered by PHA in 
the jurisdiction.  Likewise, the Community Development staff preparing this document is 
not aware of any HUD findings of violations of the Fair Housing Act, Title VI, or Section 
504, or regulations implementing these laws, in any federally funded housing or housing-
related activities in the county. 
 
2. Informational Programs 
 
Moore County’s Plan to Further Fair Housing indicates that a fair housing workshop will 
be held in the March through May quarter of 2018, 2020 and 2022.  Moore County’s 
Community Development Division has previously worked with Southern Coalition of 
Social Justice (“the Coalition”) and the Human Relations Commission to provide 
countywide workshops on renter’s rights and, in partnership with the Land Loss 
Prevention Project, countywide workshops on heirs’ property.  The Coalition has 
previously worked with county housing partner, the Northern Moore Family Resource 
Center, to examine rent-to-own contracts held by low-income homeowners in the 
northern portion of the county.  Moore County’s Community Development Division has 
also arranged Fair Housing training by the North Carolina Human Relations Commission 
for our regional Continuum of Care.  It is anticipated that these workshops will continue 
intermittently throughout the Fair Housing Plan period dependent on the availability of all 
parties. 
 
 

V.  ASSESSMENT OF CURRENT PUBLIC AND PRIVATE FAIR HOUSING 
PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES IN THE JURISDICTION 

 
Moore County increasingly has the capacity to address barriers to safe and healthy housing for 
low-income residents.  New tools, such as a low-income housing rehab program and a previous 
Individual Development Account program had staff whose efforts brought them in direct contact 
with the housing challenges faced by low-income residents.  The last two years have evidenced 
an invigorated effort at outreach and education of residents and service providers in regard to the 
rights of renters and property owners.  Some policy changes, such as past approval of zoning for 
group care facilities, demonstrate a more progressive approach to housing policy. 
 
There still is more need for capacity to confront low-income housing challenges.  A nonprofit 
organization dedicated to countywide fair housing awareness and housing counseling would 
provide awareness and empowerment of low-income residents.  A community development 
corporation that straddles the line between public and private would also be an extremely useful 
entity for the provision of a greater amount of affordable housing.  Finally, better efforts at 
helping low-income communities become more energy efficient and better linked to 



 12 

transportation and employment could address some emerging issues in the provision of fair 
housing. 
 
 
VI. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

A.  CONCLUSIONS 
 
Moore County is a mostly rural county with the population highest in the southern portion where 
towns like Southern Pines, Aberdeen and Pinehurst have higher concentrations of people and 
wealth.  Several areas of the county have higher rates of those living below the poverty line than 
the 2010-2014 North Carolina estimated state average (17.6%) and 2010-2014 estimated national 
average (15.6%.)  According to the 2010-2014 ACS 5 year estimates those areas include: 
 
36% in Census Tract 9502 (Robbins area) 

22.2% in Census Tract 9505.01 (Cameron area) 

15.6% in Census Tract 9512 (Pinebluff) 

16.4% in Census Tract 9508.01 (Northern Southern Pines) 

17% in Census Tract 9511 (Southern Aberdeen) 
 
The maps contained as Appendices here indicate that some of these areas are located relatively 
close to medical services and social service providers.  Other areas, such as Robbins and 
Cameron, do not have such ready access.  Likewise, public housing resources and low-income 
rental housing are largely located in areas with higher concentrations of population.  It would be 
preferable for Moore County to have a mix of subsidized housing for those in the workforce as 
well as senior populations located throughout the county. 
 
The 100% occupancy rate of public housing, Section 8 housing and privately owned subsidized 
housing coupled with waiting lists for each indicates the need for additional housing 
opportunities for LMI persons in the County.  It is important to note that in many communities a 
critical driver of low-income housing development is the Community Development Corporation.  
This particular piece of the housing development landscape is missing in Moore County and 
could, if developed, provide a much needed boost to the production of affordable housing as well 
as a strong advocate for better fair housing practices by public and private organizations. 
 
Finally, every community has a continuum of housing for persons of all incomes.  In Moore 
County, as with many communities across the state, there are limited resources for those 
experiencing homelessness.  There is housing for specific protected populations such as families, 
victims of domestic violence, and those receiving drug and alcohol rehabilitation.  Moore County 
has reinvigorated its four-county Continuum of Care (called ARMM for Anson Richmond 
Montgomery Moore) and is focused on providing additional vouchers for housing to those with 
disabilities who agree to receive services.  Unfortunately there are no resources for single men 
who are homeless and have disabilities.  Previously a group called Caring for Moore operated 
out of the Sandhills/Moore Coalition for Human Care successfully advocated for a change in 
Moore County’s zoning to allow for the provision of a group care facilities that can serve 



 13 

homeless men however, this group in no longer active.  ARMM is also exploring other avenues 
to developing housing resources for homeless men through Supportive Housing Development 
funds offered via the North Carolina Housing Finance Agency. 

 
B.  RECOMMENDED ACTIONS 
 
1.  Work with local realtors and lending institutions to continue to enhance their fair housing 

awareness. Facilitate a fair housing seminar/workshop. 
 
2.  Meet with the Moore County Homebuilders Association and encourage at every 

opportunity the construction of conventional affordable housing. Provide the organization 
with Fair Housing brochures to keep fair housing awareness in the forefront. 

 
3.  Continue to place advertisements in the local newspaper to promote fair housing 

awareness. Due to the increasing Hispanic population in some areas of the County, 
provide fair housing information in Spanish as well as English. 

 
4.  Ensure that Countywide Zoning Ordinances are enforced equitably. This will insure that 

the long-range goal included in the Land Use Plan, and the objectives of furthering 
affordable housing are obtainable. 

 
5. Moore County will continue to do a long range plan to improve fair housing and 

conditions within the County.  Attached is the Fair Housing Plan Moore County will 
implement for the next 5 years.  See Attachment A. 

 
6. Moore County’s Community Development division will continue to work with the UNC 

Center for Civil Rights in an attempt to inform and empower the communities with which 
they work. 

 
7. Moore County’s Community Development division will continue to work with 

organizations such as the Human Relations Commission, UNC Center for Civil Rights, 
Southern Coalition for Social Justice and the Land Loss Prevention Project to provide 
information to low-income residents on heirs property and renters rights as well as access 
to free legal assistance through these organizations to low-income households interested 
in establishing clear title to their property. 

 
 
SIGNATURE PAGE 
 
_________________ 
Nick Picerno 
Chairman, Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
_________________ 
Laura Williams, Clerk to the Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 



 14 

APPENDIX A 



 15 

 
APPENDIX B 



 16 

 
APPENDIX C 



 17 

 
APPENDIX D 



 18 

 
APPENDIX E 



 19 

 
APPENDIX F 



 20 

 
APPENDIX G 



 21 

 
APPENDIX H 



 22 

 
APPENDIX I 



 23 

APPENDIX J 
 

In February 2011, local lending institutions were mailed a survey that read as follows:  
 
Moore County needs your assistance in updating its Analysis of Impediments to Further Fair 
Housing (“Analysis”.)  One section of the Analysis is devoted to private lenders and lending 
practices.  There is a series of questions that originally appeared in HUD’s Fair Housing 
Planning Guide (pp. 134-142) that we hope your organization will help answer. 
 
1. Yes/No 
Has your bank examined its policies, procedures, and practices for possible differential treatment 
of applicants for home mortgage loans, home insurance, or home improvement loans based on 
race, ethnicity, gender, disability status, and families with children? (Many policies and practices 
may be carryovers from discriminatory antecedents that do not openly appear to be based on 
discriminatory intentions but nonetheless have a discriminatory effect.) 
 
2.  Yes/No 
Has your bank removed old policies, standards, and procedures because of their association with 
discriminatory antecedents, and have they adopted new policies, procedures, and standards for 
loan origination and processing, assessing borrower credit-worthiness, appraising the value of 
the collateral (appraiser’s responsibility) and selecting appraisers (lender’s responsibility), 
underwriting decisions, and providing private mortgage insurance (private mortgage insurer’s 
responsibility) and selecting a private mortgage insurer (lender’s responsibility)? 
 
3.  Yes/No  
Have loan officers, other lending personnel, appraisers, and private insurer staff been fully 
trained in how to apply the new policies and standards, and are they aware of the reasons they 
have been developed? 
 
4.  Yes/No  
Does your bank regularly monitor the application of these new policies and standards to 
determine if they are followed as intended? 
 
5.  Yes/No 
Does your bank refer customers to an approved list of appraisers and set clear requirements 
regarding the standards that are acceptable for appraisers to use? 
 
6.  Yes/No 
Does your bank disclose the full appraisal report to the borrower or the determination made by 
the private mortgage insurer regarding the lender’s request for insurance for the borrower? 
 
7.  Yes/No 
Does your bank use a prescreening process and, if so, document the results, place the 
documentation in the applicant’s file, and make the document available to the applicant? 
 



 24 

8.  Yes/No 
Does your bank examine its conventional mortgage and home improvement loan profiles to 
determine whether there are neighborhoods that are underrepresented or not represented in these 
profiles? 
 
9.  Yes/No 
Does your bank use the population and housing characteristics data that is available from the 
Federal financial regulatory agencies and their own Home Mortgage Disclosure Act (HMDA) 
data to determine whether there are neighborhoods that are underrepresented or not represented 
in these profiles? 
 
10.  Yes/No 
Does your bank compare the home improvement loan profile to the mortgage loan profile to 
determine if the former, which is usually a short-term consumer loan, is made more frequently to 
minorities in minority neighborhoods and to homeowners in mixed neighborhoods than 
mortgage loans? 
 
11.  Yes/No 
Does your bank aggressively market the availability of mortgage and home improvement loans 
in minority neighborhoods and encouraging minorities to apply? 312 U.S.C.A. SS 2801-2809 
(1980 Supp.). 
 
12.  Yes/No 
Does your bank provide loans only in minority neighborhoods? 
 
13.  Yes/No 
Does your bank aggressively market loans to women and persons with disabilities? 
 
14.  Yes/No 
Does your bank use statistical profiles and credit scores when making loans without looking at 
the financial circumstances of the individual family? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 25 

Here is an account of the responses received: 

 
 



 26 

First Bank, the only lending institution that replied to the survey, submitted the following: 
 

 

 



 27 

APPENDIX K 
 

In February 2011, Moore County submitted the following questionnaire to the Southern 
Pines/Laurinburg Housing Authority: 

 
Moore County needs your assistance in updating its Analysis of Impediments to Further Fair 
Housing (“Analysis”.)  One section of the Analysis is devoted to Public Housing Authorities 
(PHAs) and those entities providing vouchers.  There is a series of questions that originally 
appeared in HUD’s Fair Housing Planning Guide (pp. 126-132) that we hope your organization 
will help answer. 
 

1. What are the application and tenant selection and assignment policies of assisted housing 
providers (including PHAs)? 

 
2. Is there a pattern in one or more assisted housing developments of concentration of 

tenants by race or ethnicity? 
 

3. Do the tenant selection policies and procedures of HUD-assisted multifamily housing 
providers, including PHAs, exclude—or limit the participation of—persons with 
disabilities in housing developments they manage? 

 
4. If the answer to either of the two preceding questions is yes, how do these policies and 

procedures specifically affect the manner in which applications for housing are treated 
and applicants rejected or selected as tenants? 

 
5. Are the policies and procedures consistent with the requirements of Federal, State, and 

local law and HUD regulations and guidance? 
 

6. If a HUD-assisted (including PHAs) or HUD-insured housing provider has been found in 
noncompliance with one or more civil rights laws or regulations, has the provider 
initiated appropriate corrective actions? 

 
7. Are there any court suits involving the tenant application, selection, and assignment 

policies and procedures of any of these providers? 
 

8. If court orders relate to any of these policies or practices, what is the status of actions to 
comply with the orders, and what are the results? 

 
9. If there are concentrations of racial or ethnic groups in one or more public housing 

developments, has the PHA undertaken any efforts designed specifically to desegregate 
these developments, such as make changes to its tenant selection and assignment plan 
(TSAP)? 

 
10. If there are racial or ethnic concentrations does PHA policy permit applicants or transfers 

to state a preference for one or more projects or developments? 



 28 

11. Does PHA policy permit applicants to reject several unit offers without losing their place 
on the waiting list? What are the bases for rejecting an offer of a public housing unit? Are 
they narrowly construed, or so broad that an applicant could easily reject a unit in a 
project in which his or her race does not predominate? 

 
12. What is the pattern, by location and family type, of minority and nonminority certificate 

and voucher holders who rent units under the Section 8 certificate and voucher housing 
assistance program? 

 
13. Are minorities located primarily in minority neighborhoods and Whites in predominantly 

White neighborhoods regardless of family type (large, small, or elderly family)? 
 

14. If the answer to the previous question is yes, what specific steps does the local PHA take 
to promote housing choices for certificate and voucher holders? 

 
15. Are certificate and voucher holders using the certificates and vouchers they receive from 

the local PHA outside its geographic jurisdiction? 
 

16. Are Section 8 certificates and vouchers transportable across PHA and other administering 
agency boundaries? Does the PHA (or other agency) that administers these programs in 
the jurisdiction’s area actively promote mobility through cooperative efforts with other 
agencies in the metropolitan area or region? What are the results of these efforts? 

 
17. Does the jurisdiction actively support any of the efforts enumerated above? 

 
18. If so, in what ways? Do they include cooperative efforts with surrounding jurisdictions? 

 
19. Do the policies and procedures of the PHA or other administering agency in the grantee’s 

jurisdiction, or PHAs or agencies administering one or more assisted housing programs in 
neighboring jurisdictions, discourage or reject applications from lower-income 
households that do not reside in their jurisdiction by imposing residency or other local 
preferences? 

 
20. Does the PHA assist certificate or voucher holders who have received their certificates or 

vouchers from PHAs in other jurisdictions? In what ways? 
 

21. Does the PHA assist certificate or voucher holders who are persons with disabilities? 
(HUD regulations implementing Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 at 24 CFR 
8.28(a)(3) require PHAs to assist persons with disabilities in locating available accessible 
dwelling units.) 

 
22. Does the PHA help all certificate and voucher holders find suitable housing? 

 
23. Does this help include providing up-to-date information—to minority homeseekers in 

particular—about the various facilities and services that are available in all 
neighborhoods in which housing suitable to the needs of certificate or voucher holders is 



 29 

available? (Facilities and services include schools, day care, health and welfare and other 
social service agencies, employment centers, and public transportation.) 

 
24. Does the PHA encourage certificate and voucher holders, particularly minorities, to look 

for housing in neighborhoods that are not traditional residential areas for the holder in 
question? 

 
25. Does the PHA assist the search process in any other ways, such as: 

 
Yes/No Calling to confirm the availability of units located in nontraditional 
neighborhoods? 
Yes/No Helping with transportation costs or providing transportation service for those 
interested in housing in nontraditional neighborhoods? 
Yes/No Providing a master list of the names and addresses, number of units, and other 
data on multifamily developments in a metropolitan or other regional area that makes units 
available to Section 8 participants? 
Yes/No Providing clear information to all participants concerning their housing rights and 
the steps they should take, including requesting assistance from the PHA in the housing search, if 
they believe they have encountered housing discrimination? 
 

26. Has Moore County evaluated the performance of the agency that administers the Section 
8 certificate and voucher programs in its area to determine what results have been 
achieved under the equal housing opportunity component of the Administrative Plan? 
 

27. What steps does the PHA take to promote the availability of accessible housing resources 
suitable for Section 8 participant families in which one or more persons are mobility 
impaired? 

 
28. What steps does the PHA take to help certificate or voucher holders with other types of 

disabilities find housing and to promote housing choice for such persons? 
 

29. What are the PHA and other assisted/insured housing provider policies for admitting 
persons with mental or other nonphysical disabilities? Are these persons restricted to 
certain projects? Are the policies consistent with HUD guidance and requirements? Does 
the jurisdiction actively support these steps? In what ways? 

 
30. Has the PHA in the jurisdiction completed its Section 504 (of the Rehabilitation Act of 

1973) assessments of need for housing or other assistance among households with 
members who are disabled and the plans for meeting these needs? 

 
31. Has the jurisdiction completed its self-evaluation consistent with Section 504 of the 

Rehabilitation Act of 1973? 
 

32. Has the PHA or HUD assisted housing provider completed a self-evaluation of its 
policies, procedures and practices to determine whether they may adversely impact 



 30 

persons with disabilities during the application or tenanting process? If so, has the 
recipient corrected all identified deficiencies, pursuant to 24 CFR 8.51? 

 
33. Has the PHA conducted a needs assessment to identify need for accessible units and does 

it have a transition plan to assure access? 
 

34. Have HUD-assisted housing providers reviewed their housing program as required by 
Section 504 and has it carried out the steps in its transition plan to assure full accessibility 
of the program? 

 
35. What steps has the PHA taken to assure that persons with disabilities have access to the 

same range of housing choices and types as are offered to persons without disabilities? 
 

36. What steps has the PHA taken to identify funding resources and develop programs, in 
partnership with other public or private agencies and with private landlords participating 
in the Section 8 certificate and voucher program, to provide funds and incentives for 
making privately-owned housing units accessible to persons with disabilities? 

 
37. Has the PHA implements policies and procedures for assuring that Fair Market Rents are 

adjusted, as permitted by HUD regulations, to allow persons with disabilities to use 
certificates and vouchers in order to rent accessible, private sector housing units? 

 
38. If PHA or other HUD-assisted or -insured housing providers (such as Section 8 housing 

owners) have sold or plan to sell housing projects, what policies and procedures are in 
place to provide alternative housing to displaced tenant households? 

 
39. Are steps taken to ensure that such households are provided a varied choice of 

replacement housing, particularly to give minority displaced households an opportunity 
to select housing outside—not just inside—minority-concentrated areas? 

 
40. Does Moore County have a specific displacement policy? Are housing providers required 

to implement this policy when selling housing? (See Anti-displacement and Relocation 
Plan requirements in the Consolidated Plan Regulation at 24 CFR 91.255(a)(2)). 

 
41. Are steps taken to ensure that persons with disabilities can choose housing in a wide 

variety of accessible locations? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 31 

The Southern Pines/Laurinburg Housing Authority responded on February 19th, 2011 as follows: 

 

 

 



 32 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

Recipient’s Plan to Further Fair Housing 
 
 

Grantee:                        Moore County Contact Phone #:  (910) 947-5010 
Recipient’s Address:   P.O. Box 905     

Carthage, NC  28327                 TDD #:  (800) 735-2962 

Contact Person:         Carlis Sweat, Community Development Housing Rehab Inspector 

Contact Email:          csweat@moorecountync.gov 
 

 
I. Indicate if the Recipient will be affirmatively furthering fair housing for the first 

time or has implemented specific activities in the past. 
 

First Time         Past Activities     √   
 
II. Identify and analyze obstacles to affirmatively furthering fair housing  in 
recipient’s community.  (Use additional pages as necessary) 
 
 The basic obstacle in the Moore County is the lack of knowledge among housing agencies 

and the general public in the community concerning Title VIII requirements.  Further 
assessment of the County’s residents’ attitudes and practices will need to be made in 
order to identify and analyze further obstacles towards fair housing and what effects 
notification will have to the public. 

 
III.  Will the above activities apply to the total municipality or county? 
 
  Yes    √  No         If no, provide an explanation.  

(Use additional pages as necessary) 
 

However, each municipality within the county has their own fair housing policy and or 
guidelines as it pertains to that municipality.  Therefore, this plan is relevant only to 
Moore County. 

 
 
IV. Briefly describe the quarterly activities that the recipient will undertake over the 

active period of the grant to affirmatively further fair housing in their community.  
A time schedule and estimated cost for implementation of these activities must be 
included.  Activities must be scheduled for implementation at least on a quarterly 
basis.  (Use attached table) 
 



 33 

Grantee: MOORE COUNTY 
 
Quarterly Fair Housing Activity Months Year Estimated Cost Actual 

Cost 
Evaluate local lending institutions, 
realtors, and real estate developers within 
the community acquiring their addresses 
and mailing out board approved 
informational pamphlets to be available to 
the public in their place of business 
 

Dec.-Feb. 2017 $25.00 
100@$0.25 ea 

 

Promote fair housing through an 
Informational Distribution to target area 
residents or include a fair Housing 
statement on the monthly water bill 
 

Mar. -May 2017 $15.00 
 

 

Prepare informational brochures to be 
made available to the public at County 
Offices naming the fair housing officer, 
Address, and telephone number 
 

Jun. –Aug 2017 $50.00 
200@$0.25 ea 

 

Advertise the Complaint Procedure on the 
local radio station naming the fair housing 
office, address and telephone number 
 

Sep. –Nov. 2017 $75.00 
5 daily 

announcements 
@$15 ea 

 

Prepare a public notice for display at 
local lending institutions, realtors, and 
real estate developers within the 
community summarizing Title VIII 
requirements and describing the County’s 
assistance activities, naming the fair 
housing officer, address and telephone 
number 
 

Dec.-Feb. 2018 $2.50 
10@$0.25 ea 

 

Promote fair housing through a 
Countywide Informational workshop  

Mar.-May 2018 $150.00/ea  

 



 34 

Grantee: MOORE COUNTY 
 

Quarterly Fair Housing Activity Months Year Estimated Cost Actual 
Cost 

Advertise the FH notice in the local 
newspaper naming the fair housing office, 
address and telephone number 
 

Jun. –Aug 2018 $110.00 
 

 

Prepare a public notice for display at 
County Offices summarizing Title VIII 
requirements and describing the County’s 
assistance activities, naming the fair 
housing officer, address and telephone 
number 
 

Sep. –Nov. 2018 $5.00 
20@$0.25 ea 

 

Evaluate local lending institutions, 
realtors, and real estate developers within 
the community acquiring their addresses 
and mailing out board approved 
informational pamphlets to be available to 
the public in their place of business 
 

Dec.-Feb. 2019 $25.00 
100@$0.25 ea 

 

Promote fair housing through an 
Informational Distribution to target area 
residents or include a fair Housing 
statement on the monthly water bill 
 

Mar.-May 2019 $15.00 
 

 

Prepare informational brochures to be 
made available to the public at County 
Offices naming the fair housing officer, 
Address, and telephone number 
 

Jun. –Aug 2019 $50.00 
200@$0.25 ea 

 

Advertise the Complaint Procedure on the 
local radio station naming the fair housing 
office, address and telephone number 
 

Sep. –Nov. 2019 $75.00 
5 daily 

announcements 
@$15 ea 

 

Prepare a public notice for display at local 
lending institutions, realtors, and real 
estate developers within the community 
summarizing Title VIII requirements and 
describing the County’s assistance 
activities, naming the fair housing officer, 
address and telephone number 
 

Dec.-Feb. 2020 $2.50 
10@$0.25 ea 

 

Promote fair housing through a 
Countywide Informational workshop  

Mar.-May 2020 $150.00/ea  

 



 35 

Grantee: MOORE COUNTY 
 

Quarterly Fair Housing Activity Months Year Estimated Cost Actual 
Cost 

Advertise the FH notice in the local 
newspaper naming the fair housing office, 
address and telephone number 
 

Jun. –Aug 2020 $110.00 
 

 

Prepare a public notice for display at 
County Offices summarizing Title VIII 
requirements and describing the County’s 
assistance activities, naming the fair 
housing officer, address and telephone 
number 
 

Sep. –Nov. 2020 $5.00 
20@$0.25 ea 

 

Evaluate local lending institutions, 
realtors, and real estate developers within 
the community acquiring their addresses 
and mailing out board approved 
informational pamphlets to be available to 
the public in their place of business 
 

Dec.-Feb. 2021 $25.00 
100@$0.25 ea 

 

Promote fair housing through an 
Informational Distribution to target area 
residents or include a fair Housing 
statement on the monthly water bill 
 

Mar.-May 2021 $15.00 
 

 

Prepare informational brochures to be 
made available to the public at County 
Offices naming the fair housing officer, 
Address, and telephone number 
 

Jun. –Aug 2021 $50.00 
200@$0.25 ea 

 

Advertise the Complaint Procedure on the 
local radio station naming the fair housing 
office, address and telephone number 
 

Sep. –Nov. 2021 $75.00 
5 daily 

announcements 
@$15 ea 

 

Prepare a public notice for display at local 
lending institutions, realtors, and real 
estate developers within the community 
summarizing Title VIII requirements and 
describing the County’s assistance 
activities, naming the fair housing officer, 
address and telephone number 
 

Dec.-Feb. 2022 $2.50 
10@$0.25 ea 

 

Promote fair housing through a 
Countywide Informational workshop 
 

Mar.-May 2022 $150.00/ea  

 



 36 

V. Describe recipient’s method of receiving and resolving housing discrimination 
complaints. Include a description of how the recipient informs the public about the 
complaint procedures.  (Use additional pages as necessary) 
 

Moore County has adopted a Fair Housing Resolution which established a complaint 
procedure.  This resolution establishes Carlis Sweat, Community Development Housing 
Rehab Inspector for Moore County, as the authorized official to receive complaints 
regarding housing discrimination. 
 
Moore County has developed the following procedures for receiving and resolving housing 
discrimination complaints: 
 
1. Any person or persons wishing to file a complaint of housing discrimination in Moore 

County may do so by informing the Fair Housing Officer of the facts and circumstances 
of the alleged discriminatory acts or practice. 

 
2. Upon receiving a housing discrimination complaint, the Fair Housing Officer shall 

acknowledge the complaint within 10 days in writing and inform the North Carolina 
Human Relations Commission (116 W. Jones St., Raleigh, NC 27603-1334, 919-807-
4420) about the complaint.   

 
3. When a housing complaint cannot be resolved at the local level, the Fair Housing 

Officer shall offer assistance to the Human Relations Commission in the investigation 
and reconciliation of all housing discrimination complaints which are based on events 
occurring in Moore County. 

 
4. The County shall publicize in the local paper that the Fair Housing Officer is the local 

official to contact with housing discrimination complaints. 
 
Moore County has developed informational pamphlets that summarize the Title VIII 
requirements with regards to race, creed, color, national origin or ancestry, religion, sex, 
and/or sexual discrimination, handicap and/or disability, age, and families with children.  
The pamphlet includes the name of the contact person, the address, and the telephone 
number and a brief description of equal housing opportunities which are provided through 
Title VIII.  Moore County intends to distribute these pamphlets to various agencies by mail 
in the community who are involved in housing services.  This would include Realtors, 
financial institutions, real estate developers, senior citizen groups, and other firms and 
agencies which deal with housing. Moore County also will publish a “NOTICE” in the local 
newspaper to inform citizens of both Title VIII requirements and Moore County complaint 
procedures, naming the fair housing officer, address and contact number. 

 
Approved By: 
 
           
Nick Picerno, Chairman    November 1, 2016 
Moore County Board of Commissioners   



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.E.11/1/2016









Agenda Item:    
Meeting Date:  November 1, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:      
   
FROM:  Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney   
   Pat Corso, Executive Director, Moore County Partners in Progress 
 
DATE:   September 21, 2016  
 
SUBJECT: Economic Development Incentive Grant Agreement 
 
PRESENTER: Pat Corso, Executive Director, Moore County Partners in Progress 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Request is hereby made for the Moore County Board of Commissioners to approve entering into an 
economic development agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC and approve the associated budget 
amendment. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Reliance Packaging, LLC, is an entity operating in the Town of Aberdeen and which was considering 
relocating to another state.  In 2014, Pat Corso, Executive Director of Moore County Partners in Progress, 
approached the County concerning an economic development incentive grant that involved the One NC 
Fund, which would help retain Reliance, provide for Reliance making $3.15 million in capital investments 
within the County, and provide for Reliance hiring 43 new employees making an average wage of no less 
than $610 per week.  
 
The One NC Fund grant, which has already been entered into between the State and the Town of 
Aberdeen, is in an amount not to exceed $52,000 and requires a dollar for dollar match.  As its portion of 
the match, the Town of Aberdeen has entered into an economic development incentive grant with 
Reliance in an amount not to exceed $24,997.  As was presented to the County in 2014, the County’s 
portion of the One NC Fund grant match will be in an amount not to exceed $27,003.     
 
In exchange for the County’s grant of $27,003, Reliance will, at its facility in Aberdeen, NC: 1) make 
$3.15 million in capital investments; and 2) hire 43 new employees making an average wage of no less 
than $610 per week.  Reliance will perform both of these obligations by April 6, 2018.  The grant will be 
paid out over a period of 5 years.  The annual payments will be equal to a percentage of ad valorem taxes 
fully paid for each year, with the amounts being: 
 

Year 1 = 90% 
Year 2 = 80% 
Year 3 = 75% 
Year 4 = 75% 
Year 5 = 60% 

   
Additionally, the County included a provision from the Town of Aberdeen’s agreement which ensured 
payment of the full grant amount.  This was done in the event that the capital investments were made and 
the jobs created, but the property value did not increase sufficiently for the full grant amount to be paid.  
The language included within agreement is as follows: 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.A.



 
If the One NC Fund County portion of the grant match, in the amount of $27,003, has not 
been satisfied after the Year 5 County Grant disbursement, then the County will promptly make 
a sixth and final Grant Payment for the remainder of the amount due. In the County’s discretion, 
the sixth Grant payment may be combined with the Year 5 Grant payment for a single final 
payment. 

 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
None 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
In exchange for $27,003 paid by the County over five years, Reliance will make $3.15 million in capital 
investments within the County and hire 43 new employees making an average wage of no less than $610 
per week. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the attached associated budget amendment and authorize the Chairman to sign 
the same. 
 
Make a motion to open the public hearing regarding the attached Economic Development Agreement with 
Reliance Packaging, LLC. 
 
Hold the public hearing and, afterwards, make a motion to close the public hearing. 
 
Make a motion to approve the attached Economic Development Agreement with Reliance Packaging, 
LLC, and authorize the Chairman to sign the same.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Budget Amendment 
2. Economic Development Agreement 



14-0402 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
THIS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into effective 
the 1st day of November, 2016, by and between the County of Moore, a political subdivision of the 
State of North Carolina (the “County”), and Reliance Packaging, LLC, a limited liability company 
formed under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “Company”), and Alpha Industries, Inc., an 
incorporation formed under the laws of the State of New Jersey (the “Guarantor”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, in the fall of 2014 the County was approached by Partners in Progress, an entity that 
assists the County with its economic development, with regards to the Company purchasing a facility 
and expanding its operations within the Town of Aberdeen (the “Town”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to retain the company and enable its expansion within the Town, Partners 
in Progress presented a proposal to the County that would involve a grant from the State of North 
Carolina’s One North Carolina Fund in the amount of $52,000, which, according to the 
applicable statute at the time, required “the local government to match the funds allocated by the 
State;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal indicated that the Town and the County would split the local 
government match, with the Town providing $24,997 and the County providing $27,003, to 
match the One North Carolina Fund grant of $52,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town applied as the “local government” for the One North Carolina Fund grant 
with the belief and understanding that the County would provide its portion of the local 
government match, which was $27,003; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town, within its application to the One North Carolina Fund, provided that it 
would provide $24,997 of the $52,000 local government match; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town, within its application to the One North Carolina Fund, provided that the 
County would provide $27,003 of the $52,000 local government match; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State awarded the Town a $52,000 grant under the One North Carolina Fund 
and entered into an agreement in which the Town to obligated itself to the full amount of the 
$52,000 in local government matching funds; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Town took on that obligation with the belief and understanding that the County 
would provide $27,003 towards the matching funds requirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, to further evidence the Town’s belief and understanding, the Town entered into a 
grant agreement with the Company in which the Town only obligated itself to a grant in the 
amount of $24,997; and 



FN 14-0402 Page 2 of 9 

 
 
WHEREAS, the County has determined that in order to retain and encourage the expansion of the 
Company in Moore County, it is necessary and desirable to financially assist the Company by 
providing an economic development grant; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company intends to manufacture plastic packaging products within Moore County 
at a facility located at 155 Anderson St., Aberdeen, NC (the “Facility”); and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company has purchased the Facility; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to make capital investments at the Facility of at least $3.15 
Million by April 6, 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Company has agreed to create 43 new, full-time positions at the Facility by April 6, 
2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County finds that the consideration the County will receive, based upon the 
Company expanding within the Town, the prospective increase in tax revenues to the County, and the 
increased employment opportunities and income to its citizens, will be equal to or greater than the 
amount of the economic development incentive grant provided for under this Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Guarantor has agreed to guarantee the performance and obligations of the Company 
to induce the State of North Carolina, the Town of Aberdeen, and the County of Moore to provide 
the Company with certain economic development incentives. 
 
WHEREAS, the County has a public purpose of promoting economic development in order to 
provide jobs for its citizens, improve business prospects and the quality of life of its citizens, and to 
increase the County's tax base; and  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes §§ 153A-449, 158-7.1 and 158-7.2, the 
County and Company may enter into an agreement for the purposes of economic development; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration and mutual covenants exchanged between the 
parties hereto, it is agreed as follows: 
 

1. The County will provide an economic development incentive grant to the Company (the 
“Grant”), which will be paid to the Company in five consecutive annual payments as follows: 
 
a. Year 1:  The first annual payment will be an amount equal to 90% of ad valorem County 

taxes fully paid by the Company for 2016. 
b. Year 2:  The second annual payment will be an amount equal to 80% of ad valorem 

County taxes fully paid by the Company for 2017. 
c. Year 3:  The third annual payment will be an amount equal to 75% of ad valorem County 

taxes fully paid by the Company for 2018. 
d. Year 4:  The fourth annual payment will be an amount equal to 75% of ad valorem 

County taxes fully paid by the Company for 2019. 



FN 14-0402 Page 3 of 9 

e. Year 5:  The fifth annual payment will be an amount equal to 60% of ad valorem County 
taxes fully paid by the Company for 2020. 
 

The total amount of all payments made under this Grant will not exceed $27,003.00.  Any 
annual payment that would cause the County to exceed the total grant amount will be 
reduced.  If the full grant amount has been paid to the Company prior to the final payment, no 
further payments will be made by the County.  No payment for any year will be made until 
the County has received full payment of all ad valorem taxes assessed by the County for the 
Company’s real and personal property located in Moore County.  
 
If the One NC Fund County portion of the grant match, in the amount of $27,003, has not 
been satisfied after the Year 5 County Grant disbursement, then the County will promptly 
make a sixth and final Grant Payment for the remainder of the amount due. In the County’s 
discretion, the sixth Grant payment may be combined with the Year 5 Grant payment for a 
single final payment. 
 

2. In exchange for the Grant provided for in Section 1, the Company will: 
 
a. Make capital investments at the Facility in an amount of no less than $3,150,000 by April 

6, 2018.  Within 120 days of the execution of this Agreement, the Company will establish 
a schedule for making capital investments at the facility and will provide that schedule to 
the County.  The Company will, at a minimum, operate according to its capital 
investment schedule and will provide documentation to the County annually evidencing 
the Company’s adherence to the capital investment schedule; and 

b. Create 43 new, full-time jobs by April 6, 2018.  For each full-time position, the Company 
will provide employer benefits and pay an average wage of no less than $610.00 per 
week.  Full-time employment is defined as a person working at least 35 hours per week, 
whose wages are subject to withholding, and who is employed in a permanent position.  
Employer benefits is defined as indirect or non-cash compensation, which, among other 
things, includes no less than 50% employer-paid health insurance; and 

c. Maintain operations at the Facility for no less than seven years and six months from the 
date first written above; and 

d. Comply with all requirements of the Company Performance Agreement entered into by 
the Company and the Town, which is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by 
reference. 
 

3. If the Company fails to fulfill any obligation incurred by it under this Agreement, the County 
may hold the Company in default and, in addition to any other remedy the County may have 
at law or in equity, the County may do any or all of the following: 
 
a. Terminate this Agreement and make no further payments to the Company; 
b. Recover any and all payments made to the Company; or 
c. Recover all expenses incurred by the County due to the default, including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees. 
 

4. To receive each annual payment, the Company must provide the County with the following 
information: 
 



FN 14-0402 Page 4 of 9 

a. A written request for an annual Grant payment designating the year for which the 
payment is requested; and 

b. Proof indicating the increase in the value of the property for the year for which the annual 
Grant payment is requested from the previous year due to capital investments made by 
the Company; and 

c. Proof of payment of taxes due to the County for the year for which the annual Grant 
payment is requested; and 

d. A copy of each quarter’s NCUI101 form for the year for which the annual Grant payment 
is requested. 
 

5. Each annual payment will be based on one tax year only.  Grant payments will not be 
processed or paid more than once per County fiscal year (July 1 – June 30). 
 

6. The Company will provide the County with any additional information it requests evidencing 
compliance with this Agreement or evidencing compliance with either of the agreements 
between the Company and the State of North Carolina or the Town of Aberdeen. 

 
7. The calculation of the incentives is based solely on the change in the valuation of the Facility 

as determined by the County’s Tax Department. 
 

8. Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Company will indemnify and 
hold harmless the County, its officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, 
damages, losses, and expenses, direct, indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to 
fees and charges of engineers or architects, attorneys, and other professionals and costs 
related to court action or arbitration) arising out of or resulting from this Agreement.  This 
indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 
 

9. Termination.  This Agreement will terminate on December 23, 2023. 
 

10. Guaranty. 
 
a. In order to induce the County to enter into this Agreement, the Guarantor unconditionally 

and irrevocably guarantees, as primary obligor and not as surety, the full, prompt, and 
punctual performance by the Company of all of the Company’s obligations, agreements 
and covenants under this Agreement.  The Guarantor unconditionally guarantees the 
prompt payment of all amounts owed by the Company to the County.  The Guarantor will 
be liable for any remedies or recoveries, including attorneys’ fees incurred in enforcing 
this Agreement, available to the County with respect to this Agreement.  The liability of 
the Guarantor will be primary, joint and several. 

b. The County may exercise its rights against the Guarantor without first taking action or 
exhausting any or all remedies against the Company. 

 
11. Assignment.  This Agreement will not be assigned without the written consent of the County, 

which will not be unreasonably withheld. 
 

12. Availability of Funds.  This Agreement is subject to the availability of funds.  The County 
may terminate this Agreement at any time during the term upon thirty (30) days’ notice if the 
funds become unavailable. 
 



FN 14-0402 Page 5 of 9 

13. E-verify.  Pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 143-133.3, E-verify Compliance, the 
County may not enter into a contract unless the contractor, and the contractor’s 
subcontractors under the contract, comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of 
the General Statutes.  The Company represents and warrants that it is in compliance with the 
requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.  Further, the Company 
warrants that any subcontractors used by the Company will be in compliance with the 
requirements of Article 2 of Chapter 64 of the General Statutes. 
 

14. Iran Divestment Act.  The Company certifies that: (i) the Company is not listed on the Final 
Divestment List created by the State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 143C-6A-4 (the “Final 
Divestment List”), and (ii) the Company will not utilize any subcontractor performing work 
under this Purchase Order which is listed on the Final Divestment List. The Final Divestment 
List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at www.nctreasurer.com/Iran.  The 
website should be updated every 180 days. 
 

15. Governing Law.  The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as 
the rights and duties of the parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of 
North Carolina.  All actions relating to this Contract in any way will be brought in the 
General Courts of Justice in the County of Moore and the State of North Carolina. 

 
16. Notice.  All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be 

effective when received by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 
COMPANY: SATISH SHARMA 
 RELIANCE PACKAGING, LLC 
 155 ANDERSON STREET 
 ABERDEEN, NC  28315 
 SSHARMA@RELIANCEPKG.COM 
 
GUARANTOR: ANDREW TEO 
 C/O FLEXSOL PACKAGING 
 1531 NW 12th AVENUE 
 POMPANO BEACH, FL  33069 
 ANDREW.TEO@SIGMAPLASTICS.COM 
 
COUNTY: COUNTY OF MOORE 
 ATTN:  WAYNE VEST, COUNTY MANAGER 
 P.O. BOX 905 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327 
 WVEST@MOORECOUNTYNC.GOV 
 

17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties 
and supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, relating to 
the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may only be amended by the written mutual 
agreement of the parties. 
 

18. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts with each being an 
original. 

 



FN 14-0402 Page 6 of 9 

19. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be unenforceable by 
a court of competent jurisdiction, such determination will not affect any other provision of 
this Agreement. 
 

20. Non-Waiver.  The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this 
Agreement will not affect that party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to 
enforce other remedies available to it by law or under this Agreement.  In addition, no waiver 
of any breach or default of this Agreement will constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach 
or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 
 

21. Audit.  The County has the right to inspect, examine, and make copies of any and all books, 
accounts, invoices, records and other writings relating to the performance of this Agreement.  
Audits will take place at times and locations mutually agreed upon by both parties.  The 
Company must make the materials to be audited available within one (1) week of the request 
for them. 
 

22. Drafted by Both Parties.  This Agreement is deemed to have been drafted by both parties and 
no interpretation will be made to the contrary. 
 

23. Headings.  Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or 
interpretation of any provision. 
 

The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This Agreement is effective as of the date first written 
above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING THREE PAGES] 



FN 14-0402 Page 7 of 9 

COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
  
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
   (Affix Official Seal) 
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
I,       , a Notary Public of Moore County, North Carolina, 
certify that Laura M. Williams personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that she is 
Clerk to the Moore County Board of Commissioners, and that by authority duly given and as the act 
of said County, the foregoing Lease Agreement was signed in its name by its Chairman, sealed with 
its official seal, and attested by herself as its Clerk. 
 
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
   
 (Seal) Notary Public 
 
   My commission expires:   
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
  
Finance Officer 
 
 
 
 



FN 14-0402 Page 8 of 9 

RELIANCE PACKAGING, LLC 
 
 
  
Satish Sharma, President/Member 
 
Date:   
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
I,      , a Notary Public of Moore County, North Carolina, certify 
that Satish Sharma personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he is the President 
of Reliance Packaging, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, and that by authority duly 
given and as the act of the corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its 
President, sealed with its corporate seal, and attested by himself as its President. 
  
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
   
 (Seal) Notary Public 
 
   My commission expires:   
 
 
 
 



FN 14-0402 Page 9 of 9 

ALPHA INDUSTRIES, INC. 
 
 
  
Mark Teo, Chief Operating Officer 
 
Date:   
 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
BROWARD COUNTY 
 
I,      , a Notary Public of Broward County, Florida, certify that 
Mark Teo personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that he is the Chief Operating 
Officer (COO) of Alpha Industries, Inc., a New Jersey corporation, and that by authority duly given 
and as the act of the corporation the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by its COO, sealed 
with its corporate seal, and attested by himself as its COO. 
  
Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
   
 (Seal) Notary Public 
 
   My commission expires:   
 



“Calico Ridge” Bed & Breakfast – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

Agenda Item: ____ 
Meeting Date: November 1, 2016   

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director  
 
DATE:  October 11, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit Request: Bed & Breakfast  
 (“Calico Ridge” – 286 Heritage Farm Road) 
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
 
REQUEST 
Sheryl Evans is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for the use of a one-unit Bed & Breakfast in 
a single family residence located at 286 Heritage Farm Road, owned by Robert and Sheryl 
Evans, as identified in Moore County tax records.  
 
This case was properly advertised, a public hearing sign was posted on the property, and all 
adjacent property owners were notified. 
 
BACKGROUND 

• Current land use – Includes one single family residence.  
• Adjacent land uses – Includes undeveloped forested property and single family 

residences.  
 

IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Hold the public hearing.  
 
ACTION BY THE PLANNING BOARD 
The Planning Board met on October 6, 2016 and unanimously recommended approval.  
 
REQUIRED FINDINGS OF FACT FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
In considering the Conditional Use Permit the following findings are required: 
 

1. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed 
and developed according to plan; 

2. The use meets all required conditions and specifications;  
3. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property unless the 

use is a public necessity; 
4. The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan as submitted and 

approved, will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and will be in 
general conformity with the approved Moore County Land Use Plan.   

 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.B.



“Calico Ridge” Bed & Breakfast – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

APPLICATION REVIEW COMMENTS 
The proposed site plan meets all Unified Development Ordinance requirements.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
No financial impact to the County FY 2016-2017 budget.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Moore County Board of Commissioners make the following motion: 
 
Motion: Make a motion to approve/deny the Conditional Use Permit for the use of a one-unit 
Bed & Breakfast in a single family residence located at 286 Heritage Farm Road (ParID 
00038405), owned by Sheryl Evans, as identified in Moore County tax records. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Photo of Property 
• Land Use Map 
• Conditional Use Permit Application 
• Submitted Site Plan 
• Submitted Floor Plan of Basement 
• Submitted Photos of Residence 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



“Calico Ridge” Bed & Breakfast – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

View of driveway from Heritage Farm Road.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



H
E

R
IT

A
G

E
 F

A
R

M

AYERS

UNION CHURCH

LAND USE MAP

Single family
homes

0 500 1,000
Feet

Undeveloped

Undeveloped







 9.3.10   Bed and Breakfast Operations 

 
9.3.1001  The use must be located in a structure that was constructed as a single family 
dwelling. 
YES.  The bed and breakfast is located in the lower level of the home.  It is a walk 
out basement. 
 
9.3.1002  There shall be no less than one (1) bathroom, consisting of a bath or shower, 
water closet, and lavatory for each two (2) guest rooms. 
There are 2 bedrooms in the unit and one bathroom with a toilet, sink, and 
shower.  The bathroom is designed to be fully handicap accessible, with a 5 foot 
turn radius, a “roll in” shower with a bench and a hand held shower and with a 
second fixed shower head. 
 
9.3.1003  In addition to parking requirements listed in 8.3 (Parking and Loading) of this 
Ordinance, no parking shall be allowed in any front yard. 
There is one parking space available just outside the entrance into the designated 
Bed and Breakfast area.  Entrance into the Bed and Breakfast area is handicap 
accessible.  Additional parking is available in the parking area in front of the 
house. 
 
9.3.1004  A floor plan of each dwelling must be provided, showing ingress and egress 
from each room, bathrooms, kitchen, dining areas, other problem areas available to 
guests and private quarters of the owner and staff. 
There are sliding glass patio doors for egress in each bedroom in the Bed and 
Breakfast area.  There is a garden door (entrance door) in the sitting room/dining 
area/kitchenette for egress from that area.  From the bathroom the garden door is 
the egress, although the sliding glass door in the north bedroom could also be 
used. 
 
9.3.1005  A fire protection plan approved by the County Fire Marshal must be submitted 
with the floor plan. 
Nothing is currently required. 
 
9.3.1006  The required development site plan shall depict neighboring properties and 
building within 200 feet of the property line. 
There is a site plan included in this packet. 
 
9.3.1007  The owner must permanently reside on the site of the bed and breakfast inn.  
An owner is an individual with a 25% or greater interest in the business. 
I (Sheryl Evans) own the property, and I permanently reside there.   
 
9.3.1008  All required state permits must be acquired and maintained.   
I will work with closely with the appropriate agencies to make sure permits are 
acquired and maintained. 







 Calico Ridge 

 1 

 
Log Home showing the entrance to the proposed B&B and the parking area: 

 
 
 
Private entrance to B&B area of the home: 

 
 
 



 Calico Ridge 

 2 

Main Room Sitting Area: 

 
 
 
Kitchenette and Dining Area: 

 
 
Bedroom marked as Bedroom #3 on floor plans: 



 Calico Ridge 

 3 

 
 
 
Bedroom marked as Bedroom #4 on floor plans: 

 



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  11/01/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Caroline Ly Xiong, Chief Finance Officer 
  
DATE: 10/24/16 
  
SUBJECT: Limited Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2016  
 
PRESENTER:  Caroline Ly Xiong 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve a Resolution approving and authorizing an installment contract financing by the County of 
Moore, North Carolina through the issuance of a not to exceed $24,000,000 Limited Obligation 
Refunding Bond, Series 2016 and the execution and delivery of a second Supplemental Trust 
Agreement and related documents in connection therewith. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County held a public hearing on October 4th, 2016 regarding the issuance of limited obligation 
bonds of the County in an amount not to exceed $33,000,000 in order to refund certain existing 
limited obligation bonds and to acquire refunding bonds of the East Moore Water District, and 
consider adoption of the Resolution Making Certain Findings and Determinations Regarding the 
Issuance of Limited Obligation Bonds of the County.  
 
On October 4th, 2016, the Board of Commissioners selected a direct bank loan with Raymond James 
Capital Funding Inc. who submitted a proposal to refund the County’s outstanding callable Series 
2010 Limited Obligation Bonds.   
 
FUNDING SOURCE / FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The issuance of the Limited Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2016 privately placed with Raymond 
James Capital Funding Inc. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
After the approval of the Resolution, staff will proceed with the execution and delivery of a Second 
Supplemental Trust Agreement and related documents. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve a Resolution approving and authorizing an installment contract financing 
by the County of Moore, North Carolina through the issuance of a not to exceed $24,000,000 Limited 
Obligation Refunding Bond, Series 2016 and the execution and delivery of a second Supplemental 
Trust Agreement and related documents in connection therewith. 
 
 

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.A.



ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 



The Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, North Carolina, met in regular 
meeting in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Second Floor of the Historic Courthouse located 
at 1 Courthouse Square in Carthage, North Carolina, the regular place of meeting, at 5:30 p.m., 
on November 1, 2016, with Chairman Nick Picerno, presiding.  The following Commissioners 
were: 

PRESENT:  

  

ABSENT:  

  

ALSO PRESENT:  

  

*     *     *     *     *     * 

__________________ introduced the following resolution, the title of which was read 
and a copy of which had been previously distributed to each Commissioner: 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING AN INSTALLMENT 
CONTRACT FINANCING BY THE COUNTY OF MOORE, NORTH 
CAROLINA THROUGH THE ISSUANCE OF A NOT TO EXCEED 
$24,000,000 LIMITED OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2016 
AND THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A SECOND 
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 
IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the “Board”) for the County of 
Moore, North Carolina (the “County”): 

Section 1.  The Board does hereby find and determine as follows: 

(a) The County has determined, for the purpose of achieving debt service savings, to 
refund a portion of the County’s outstanding Limited Obligation Bonds, Series 2010, dated 
October 7, 2010 (the “2010 Bonds”), the proceeds of which were used to acquire, construct and 
equip a public safety complex and certain utility improvements and to refinance certain interim 
indebtedness entered into in connection therewith (collectively, the “2010 Project”).  The portion 
of the 2010 Bonds to be refunded by the Bond (hereinafter defined) are referred to herein as the 
“Refunded Bonds.” 

(b) After a public hearing and due consideration, the Board has determined that the most 
efficient manner of financing the refunding of the Refunded Bonds will be through the execution 
and delivery of a Second Supplemental Trust Agreement, to be dated as of November 1, 2016 



2 

(the “Supplemental Trust Agreement”), between the County and U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), supplementing a Master Trust Agreement, dated as of 
October 1, 2010 (the “Master Trust Agreement”), between the County and the Trustee (the 
Master Trust Agreement and the Second Supplemental Trust Agreement being hereinafter 
collectively referred to as the “Trust Agreement”), pursuant to which the County will issue a 
limited obligation bond thereunder in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $24,000,000 
(the “Bonds”) to provide funds, together with any other available funds, to (i) refund the 
Refunded Bonds and (ii) pay the fees and expenses incurred with the sale and issuance of the 
Bonds. 

(c) In order to secure its obligations under the Trust Agreement, the County has 
heretofore executed and delivered a Deed of Trust, dated as of October 1, 2010 (the “Deed of 
Trust”), for the benefit of the Trustee granting a lien on the site of the 2010 Project, together with 
all improvements and fixtures located or to be located thereon.  The outstanding 2010 Bonds and 
the Bond will be secured on a parity basis by the Deed of Trust pursuant to the terms of the Trust 
Agreement. 

(d) The County proposes to sell the Bond at a private sale without advertisement to 
Raymond James Capital Funding, Inc. (the “Lender”) pursuant to a proposal previously 
submitted to the County. 

(e) There have been presented to the Board drafts of the following documents relating to 
the transaction hereinabove described: 

(1) the Second Supplemental Trust Agreement, including a form of the Bonds 
attached as Exhibit A thereto; and 

(2) the Escrow Deposit Agreement, to be dated as of December 1, 2016 (the 
“Escrow Agreement”), between the County and U.S. Bank, National Association, as 
escrow agent. 

Section 2.  In order to provide the financing for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds, the 
County is hereby authorized to enter into the Second Supplemental Trust Agreement and to issue 
the Bond thereunder in a principal amount not to exceed $24,000,000.  The Bond shall mature in 
annual installments with a final maturity of June 1, 2031, shall bear interest at 2.05% per annum 
(subject to adjustment as provided in the Second Supplemental Trust Agreement), and shall be 
subject to redemption as set forth in the Trust Agreement and the Second Supplemental Trust 
Agreement. 

Section 3.  The proposal of the Lender to purchase the Bond is hereby approved and the 
Chairman of the Board, the County Manager, the Chief Finance Officer and the Clerk to the 
Board and any deputy or assistant Clerk to the Board are hereby authorized to execute any bond 
purchase agreement or other document required by the Lender to purchase the Bond.  The Board 
hereby ratifies and approves all action previously taken by the County, its officers and its 
employees in connection with the solicitation of proposals for purchasers for the Bond. 



3 

Section 4.  The Board hereby approves the forms of the Second Supplemental Trust 
Agreement, the Escrow Agreement and the Bond in substantially the forms presented at this 
meeting.  The Chairman of the Board, the County Manager and the Chief Finance Officer are 
each hereby authorized to execute and deliver the Second Supplemental Trust Agreement, the 
Escrow Agreement and the Bond on behalf of the County in substantially the forms presented at 
this meeting, containing such insertions, deletions and filling in of blanks as the person executing 
such documents shall approve, such execution to be conclusive evidence of approval by the 
Board of any such changes.  The Clerk to the Board or any assistant or deputy Clerk to the Board 
is hereby authorized to affix the official seal of the County to said documents and to attest the 
same to the extent required. 

Section 5.  No deficiency judgment may be rendered against the County in any action for 
breach of any contractual obligation with respect to the Bond or under the Trust Agreement and 
the Second Supplemental Trust Agreement, and the taxing power of the County is not and may 
not be pledged directly or indirectly to secure any moneys due with respect to the Bond, the 
Second Supplemental Trust Agreement or under the Trust Agreement. 

Section 6.  The Chairman of the Board, the County Manager, the Chief Finance Officer, 
the County Attorney and the Clerk to the Board, and any other officers, agents and employees of 
the County, are hereby authorized and directed to deliver such certificates, opinions and other 
items of evidence as shall be deemed necessary to consummate the transactions described above 
including, specifically, those documents necessary to effect the redemption of the Refunded 
Bonds. 

Section 7.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

Upon motion of Council Member _________________, seconded by Council Member 
__________________, the foregoing resolution entitled “RESOLUTION APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING AN INSTALLMENT CONTRACT FINANCING BY THE COUNTY OF 
MOORE, NORTH CAROLINA THROUGH THE ISSUANCE OF A NOT TO EXCEED 
$24,000,000 LIMITED OBLIGATION REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2016 AND THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST AGREEMENT 
AND RELATED DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH” was passed by the 
following vote: 

Ayes:   

Noes:   

*     *     *     *     *     * 

I, Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners for the County of Moore, 
North Carolina, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true copy of so much of the 
proceedings of said Board of Commissioners for said County at a regular meeting held on 
November 1, 2016, as it relates in any way to the passage of the foregoing resolution relating to 
an installment contract financing for said County and that said proceedings are recorded in the 
minutes of said Board of Commissioners. 



4 

I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY that proper notice of such regular meeting was 
given as required by North Carolina law. 

WITNESS my hand and the official seal of said County this 1st day of November, 2016. 

[SEAL]   
Clerk to the Board 

WCSR 37297747v2 



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  11/1/16 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:   October 24, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Change Order Number 1 
   Lift Station V-1 Elimination Project 
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST:  
Approve Change Order Number 1 to the construction contract with Columbus Utilities, Inc. for the Lift 
Station V-1 Elimination project. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The V-1 Lift Station in Vass will provide gravity sewer piping to the new LR-1 Lift Station which 
will allow the V-1 Lift Station to be eliminated.   
 
The start of construction was delayed by the County therefore the contract time needs to be extended 
from 180 days to 240 days.   
 
The connection to an existing manhole is required due to an alignment change made by Moore 
County.  The cost of the manhole core as provided by the Contractor is $1,748. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve Change Order Number 1 and authorize for execution.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Increase contract price by $1,748.00.  This money will come out of contingencies. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve Change Order Number 1 to the construction contract with Columbus Utilities, 
Inc.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Change Order Number 1 
August 31 letter from Columbus Utilities 
October 13 letter from Columbus Utilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I:Public Works/Wastewater/V1 Pump Station/Elimination Project/J.1 Change Orders/Memo to Board 110116 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.B.



The Contract Period Provided for Completion Will Be (Increased) (Decreased) (Unchanged) :

FORM APPROVED
OMB NO. 0575-0042

Form RD 1924-7 ORDER NO.
(Rev. 2-97) UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

RURAL DEVELOPMENT AND
FARM SERVICE AGENCY DATE

STATECONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

COUNTYCONTRACT FOR

OWNER

To
(Contractor)

You are hereby requested to comply with the following changes from the contract plans and specifications:

INCREASEDECREASEDescription of Changes
 (Supplemental Plans and Specifications Attached) in Contract Pricein Contract Price

$$

TOTALS $

NET CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE $
JUSTIFICATION:

The amount of the Contract will be (Decreased) (Increased) By The Sum Of:

Dollars ($ ).

The Contract Total Including this and previous Change Orders Will Be:

Dollars ($ ).

Days.

This document will become a supplement to the contract and all provisions will apply hereto.

Requested
(Date)(Owner)

Recommended
(Owner's Architect/Engineer) (Date)

Accepted
(Contractor) (Date)

Approved by Agency
(Date)(Name and Title)

POSITION 6
Form RD 1924-7 (Rev. 2-97)

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid
OMB control number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is 0575-01042. The time required to complete this information collection is estimated to average 15 minutes
per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of
information.

COPY-BORROWER
COPY-CONTRACTOR
ORIGINAL-BORROWER'S CASE FOLDER







  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  11/1/16 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:   October 24, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  20 Spur Road Settlement Agreement 
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould, PE 
 
REQUEST:  
Approve the Settlement Agreement for the wastewater service to 20 Spur Road. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
It was discovered during the Village of Pinehurst’s construction of its new Public Services Facility 
that an active sewer service line from 20 Spur Road entered and terminated on the Village’s property 
at a private septic system.  Prior to this discovery, the County and the property owner both believed 
20 Spur Road was connected to the County’s sewer system.  As evidence of this, throughout the 
history of the account the owner has paid all invoices for sewer service as billed by the County. 
 
To rectify the situation Public Works proposes to connect the property to the County’s sewage system 
at no cost to the property owner in exchange for a waiver of all claims against County.  To do this, 
Public Works will construct a 6” sewer lateral from the County’s sewer main to the property line of 
20 Spur Road.  The County will contract with a plumber to connect the property to the County’s 
sewer system.  All equipment installed by the plumber will belong to the property owner and will be 
the responsibility of the property owner.  The plumber will provide the property owner with a one 
year warranty on parts and installation. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve the Settlement Agreement and authorize for execution.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Three (3) quotes received from plumbers, with the lowest quote being $5,800. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the Settlement Agreement with the Property Owner of 20 Spur Road. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Settlement Agreement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I:Public Works/Wastewater/Customer Letters/20 Spur Road/Memo to Board 110116 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.C.



FN 16-0329 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE 
 
 
THIS SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE (hereinafter the “Agreement”) is 
entered into the 1st day of November, 2016, by and between the County of Moore, a political 
subdivision of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter the “County”), and the Marilyn E. Barrett 
Trust Dated November 20, 1998, owner of real property located in Pinehurst, North Carolina 
(hereinafter the “Trust”). 
 
WHEREAS, the Trust is the owner of real property located at 20 Spur Road, Pinehurst, NC, and 
having Parcel ID/LRK 00013897 (the “Property”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the County owns and operates a sewage system within the jurisdiction of the 
Village of Pinehurst, which the Property was believed to be connected to; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Trust acquired the Property on July 9, 2012, and has paid the County for 
sewage service since that time; and 
 
WHEREAS, recently, the Village of Pinehurst, while excavating its property adjacent to the 
Property, uncovered an antiquated septic field that was determined to be the sewage outflow for 
the Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of the mistaken belief that the Property was connected to the County’s 
sewage service, the Trust has paid for services that were not provided; and 
 
WHEREAS, in an effort to resolve all issues related to the parties’ mutual mistake, the County 
and the Trust entered into settlement negotiations. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the County and the Trust covenant 
and agree as follows: 
 

1. The County, in lieu of repaying any funds that may have been improperly assessed 
against the Trust for sewage services to the Property, will provide or obtain the following, 
which will connect the Property to the County’s sewage service: 
 

a. The County will construct a tap to the sewer main and a cleanout at the edge of 
the County’s easement; 

b. The County will contract with a plumber for the purpose of installing the 
connecting sewage line from the Property to the County’s sewer main; 



FN 16-0329 Page 2 of 5 

c. The County will require of the plumber that it provide a warranty of no less than 
one year for parts and services related to the installation of the connecting sewage 
line; and 

d. The County will waive any connection fee for connecting to its sewage main.  
 

2. The County will complete all obligations incurred by it under Section 1 within a 
reasonable time. 
 

3. All portions of the sewage line installed by the plumber will be the property of the Trust.  
Other than contracting with the plumber and requiring the plumber to provide a one year 
warranty, the County will have no liability regarding the parts or services provided by the 
plumber. 
 

4. The Trust understands and agrees that it remains liable for and will pay all amounts 
invoiced by the County for water and sewer service, including any amounts invoiced 
during the time required by the County to perform its obligations under Section 1. 
 

5. The Trust, for itself, its successors, assigns, officers, officials, agents, and employees, 
releases and forever discharges the County, its successors, assigns, officers, officials, 
agents, and employees, from any and all claims, demands, costs, judgments, expenses, 
liabilities, attorneys’ fees, and legal costs, whether known or unknown, which the Trust 
has or may have, arising out of or in any way related to the above referenced dispute 
regarding sewage service provided by the County; and 

 
6. The County and the Trust agree that nothing contained in this Agreement will be 

construed as an admission of liability of any sort and any payments and settlement are 
made as a compromise to terminate any potential or further controversy with respect to 
the matters contained in or related to this Agreement; and 

 
7. The County and the Trust represent that no promise, inducement, or representation has 

been made or relied upon other than as set forth within this Agreement.  This Agreement 
constitutes the entire agreement between the County and the Trust and all prior 
understandings, representations, and agreements are merged into this Agreement; and 

 
8. This Agreement will not be modified in any manner except by a written instrument 

signed by both parties; and 
 

9. The County and the Trust represent that they have read and understand this Agreement 
and that they act voluntarily and with advice of counsel; and 

 
10. In the event that any provision or portion of this Agreement is found to be void or invalid, 

that provision or portion will be deemed severable from the remaining provisions and 
portions of this Agreement and will not affect the validity of the remaining portions.  The 
remaining portions will be given full force and effect as if the void or invalid provision or 
portion had not been included within the Agreement. 
 



FN 16-0329 Page 3 of 5 

11. This Agreement will consist of three (3) fully executed originals of which the County will 
keep two originals; and 

 
12. This Agreement will be governed and interpreted by the laws of the State of North 

Carolina. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Moore and the Trust have set forth their signatures 
upon this Settlement Agreement and Release as of the date first written above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON PAGES 4 AND 5] 



FN 16-0329 Page 4 of 5 

COUNTY OF MOORE   
 
 
  
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
Sworn to and subscribed before me this day by Nick J. Picerno. 
□ I have personal knowledge of the identity of the principal(s). 
□ I have seen satisfactory evidence of the principal’s identity, by a current state or federal 

identification with the principal’s photograph in the form of a  . 
□ A credible witness has sworn to the identity of the principal(s). 
 
Date:    
 
    (Official Seal) 
   
Notary Public    
 
   
Printed or typed name of Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:   
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
   
Misty Randall Leland, Attorney for 
County of Moore 
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
  
Finance Officer 



FN 16-0329 Page 5 of 5 

MARILYN E. BARRETT TRUST 
DATED NOVEMBER 20, 2998 
 
 
  
Marilyn E. Barrett 
Trustee 
 
 
Sworn to and subscribed before me this day by   . 
□ I have personal knowledge of the identity of the principal(s). 
□ I have seen satisfactory evidence of the principal’s identity, by a current state or federal 

identification with the principal’s photograph in the form of a  . 
□ A credible witness has sworn to the identity of the principal(s). 
 
Date:    
 
    (Official Seal) 
   
Notary Public 
 
   
Printed or typed name of Notary Public 
 
My commission expires:   
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
   
  , Attorney for 
Marilyn E. Barrett Trust Dated November 20, 1998 
 



  Agenda Item:   
   Meeting Date:  Nov. 1, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:  October 3, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Amendment to Disposal Service Agreement  
 
PRESENTER:         Chad Beane - Solid Waste & Recycling Manager  
 
 
REQUEST:   
 
We are requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve an Amendment to the Disposal 
Service Agreement between Moore County and Republic Services of North Carolina, LLC 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND:   
 
In response to the Resource Recovery Act (RCRA), on October 9th 1991, the EPA promulgated 
revised criteria for Solid Waste Disposal Facilities whereas after January 1, 1998, all active 
sanitary landfills (except land clearing and inert debris landfills) shall be equipped with liners, 
leachate collection systems and final cover systems. In response Moore County closed its 
landfill on October 9th, 1993 and entered into a Disposal Service Agreement with Uwharrie 
Environmental to insure availability of a landfill site for the proper disposal of County waste.  
Uwharrie Environmental / Republic Services Inc. currently operates and maintains the Moore County 
Landfill Transfer station and is responsible for hauling and disposal of county waste once it is placed in 
the Transfer station. 
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:  
 
     This amendment shall be considered written notice of the County’s right to renew the terms 
of the Agreement with Republic Services to renew for a term of five (5) years or seven (7) years 
at the discretion of the Moore County Board of Commissioners.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.D.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT:  
 
     The fees to be charged cover operation and maintenance of the Transfer Station, 
transportation and disposal of waste at the Uwharrie Environmental Landfill in Montgomery 
County pursuant to the agreement and this amendment.  The current tipping fees are $45.18 
per ton with $2.75 per ton being a service fee for the NC Solid Waste Disposal Tax and costs 
related to the Solid Waste Management Act.  There was no increase to this FY tipping fees in 
hopes of a contract extension.   
 
- The five year amendment reduces the tipping fee to $43.00 per ton with $2.75 per ton of 

this fee for the NC solid waste disposal tax.  Based on the average tonnage that Moore 
County generates and the reduction in tipping fees, we estimate a cost savings of $75,661                
over the next five years.   

- The seven year amendment reduces the tipping fees to $42.40 per ton with $2.75 per ton of 
this fee for the NC solid waste disposal tax.  Based on the average tonnage that Moore 
County generates and the reduction in tipping fees, we estimate a cost savings of $162,163                
over the next seven years. 
 
*   Also, Moore County would be released from any capital improvements on the transfer 
station during the contract period.   

 
 

RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
We recommend the Board approve a motion to accept an Amendment to the Waste Disposal Service 
Agreement between Moore County and Republic Services of North Carolina, LLC and continue the 
contract for a term of  ______ years and allow the County Manager to sign any additional documents 
that may be needed.  
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
      
          Amendment to Disposal Service Agreement  
 
 
 
 

















clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.E.11/1/2016



























































clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.F.11/1/2016















































  Agenda Item:    
         Meeting Date:  11/1/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:   Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney     
 
DATE:  October 28, 2016        
 
SUBJECT: DSS Declaratory Judgment Item 
 
PRESENTER: Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney  
 
REQUEST:   
The DSS Board requests the Board of Commissioners to approve the County Attorney’s Office filing 
a Court Action (i.e. Declaratory Judgment) against the Fayetteville Observer regarding a public 
records request for the release of the Durham Report as it relates to the Rylan Ott matter. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The DSS Board met on October 20, 2016 and voted unanimously to request the Board of 
Commissioners to authorize the County Attorney’s Office to file a Court Action (probably in the 
form of a Declaratory Judgment)  asking the judge to review the public records request of releasing 
the “Durham Report.”  The action will be filed against the Fayetteville Observer. The Judge would 
look at the Report and decide whether the information contained within the Report can or cannot be 
released based upon the confidentiality laws of North Carolina. This Court Action could be viewed as 
a proactive approach in displaying transparency and impartiality by the County.   
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN:   
File a court action against the Fayetteville Observer. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
None. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion authorizing the County Attorney’s Office to file a court action against the Fayetteville 
Observer regarding the release of the Durham Report as it relates to the Rylan Ott matter.   
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS:  None. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.G.


	AGENDA
	IV.A. BOC WELCOME PACKET
	IV.B. SANDHILLS QUARTERLY RPT
	V.A. 10/18 MINUTES
	V.B. BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	V.C. RATIFY SIGNATURE
	V.D. FAIR HOUSING
	V.E. UNIFIED HAZARD MIT GRANT
	VI.A. PUBLIC HEARING: EC DEV 
	VI.B. PUBLIC HEARING: CUP
	VIII.A. LIMITED OB REFUNDING BOND
	VIII.B. CO#1 LIST STATION V-1
	VIII.C. SETTLEMENT SPUR RD
	VIII.D. REPUBLIC SERVICES
	VIII.E. HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT
	VIII.F. EMPG GRANT
	VIII.G. DECLARATORY JUDGMENT

	FillText9: 1
	FillText8: 10/24/2016
	FillText11: NC
	FillText13: Lift Station V-1 Elimination
	FillText12: Moore
	FillText14: Moore County
	FillText15:                             Columbus Utilities, Inc.
	FillText16: Addition of one (1) 8" concrete manhole core.
	FillText1: 
	FillText56: 1,748
	FillText17: 
	FillText6: 
	FillText57: 
	FillText18: 
	FillText7: 
	FillText58: 
	FillText19: 
	FillText45: 
	FillText59: 
	FillText2: 
	FillText46: 
	FillText60: 
	FillText3: 
	FillText47: 
	FillText61: 
	FillText4: 
	FillText48: 
	FillText62: 
	FillText21: 0
	FillText23: 01,748
	FillText22: 0
	FillText24: 0
	FillText5: Moore County revised the sewer main profile so the manhole sewer main connection had to be revised.  The revised sewer main connection will need to be cored for the connection.  The time extension is required because the County delayed the beginning of construction and due to Hurricane Matthew.
	Contract_Change: Increased
	FillText30: One Thousand Seven Hundred 
	FillText31: and Fourty Eight
	FillText32: 1748
	FillText33: Four Hundred Twenty Eight
	FillText34: Thousand Three Hundred and Thirty Seven
	FillText35: 428337
	Contract_period: CircleText1
	FillText36: 60
	FillText10: 
	FillText20: 
	FillText25: 
	FillText26: 
	CheckBox1: Off
	CheckBox2: Off
	CheckBox3: Off
	Button1: 
	Button2: 
	Button3: 
	Button4: 
	Button5: 
	Button6: 
	Button7: 
	Button8: 
	Button9: 
	Button10: 
	confNbrLbl: Conf Nbr:
	confNbrData: 
	custNameLbl: Name:
	custNameData: 
	dateLbl: Submitted:
	dateData: 


